MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER

ISSUE NO. 10

The Montana Administrative Register (MAR), a twice-monthly publication, has three sections. The notice section contains state agencies' proposed new, amended or repealed rules; the rationale for the change; date and address of public hearing; and where written comments may be submitted. The rule section indicates that the proposed rule action is adopted and lists any changes made since the proposed stage. The interpretation section contains the attorney general's opinions and state declaratory rulings. Special notices and tables are found at the back of each register.

Inquiries regarding the rulemaking process, including material found in the Montana Administrative Register and the Administrative Rules of Montana, may be made by calling the Administrative Rules Bureau at (406) 444-2055.

Page Number

TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTICE SECTION

STATE AUDITOR, Title 6

6-129 (Classification Review Committee) Notice of Proposed Amendment - Updating References to the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance 1996 ed. and Adoption of New Classifications. No Public Hearing Contemplated.

812-814

COMMERCE, Department of, Title 8

8-4-16 (Board of Alternative Health Care) Notice of Proposed Amendment - Fees - Continuing Education for Naturopathic Physicians and Midwives - Licensure of Out-of-state Applicants - Direct-entry Midwife Protocol Standard List Required for Application. No Public Hearing Contemplated.

815-818

8-20-30 (Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers) Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment - Fees - Examination - Pass/Fail Point - Minimum Testing and Recording Procedures.

819-821

LABOR AND INDUSTRY, Department of, Title 24

24-11-146 Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed
Amendment - Unemployment Insurance Benefit Claims. 822-824

-i-

LIVESTOCK, Department of, Title 32

32-3-153	Notice	of	Proposed	Adopt	ion	- :	Ruminant
Feeds for	Livestoc	k P	rohibition	. No	Pub.	lic	Hearing
Contempla	ted.						

825-827

32-3-154 Notice of Proposed Amendment - Certification of Specially Qualified Deputy Stock Inspectors. No Public Hearing Contemplated.

828-830

NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION, Department of, Title 36

(Board of Land Commissioners and Department of Natural Resources and Conservation)

36-25-80 Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Adoption of Temporary Rule - Biodiversity and Oldgrowth Management.

831-833

SECRETARY OF STATE, TITLE 44

44-2-108 Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment - Fees for Administrative Rules of Montana and Montana Administrative Register.

834-836

44-2-109 Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Adoption - Fees for Records Management Microfilming, Imaging and Storage Services.

837-841

RULE SECTION

STATE AUDITOR, Title 6

AMD (Classification Review Committee) Updating References to the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance 1996 ed. and Adoption of New and Amended Classifications.

842

COMMERCE, Department of, Title 8

AMD (Board of Outfitters) Licensure - Fees.

843-844

AMD (Local Government Assistance Division) Submission and Review of Applications Under the 2000-2001 Treasure State Endowment Program (TSEP).

845-846

		Page Number
FISH,	WILDLIFE AND PARKS, Department of, Title 12	
	(Fish, Wildlife and Parks Commission) Creating a No Wake Zone at Hell Creek Marina on Fort Peck Reservoir - Updating the Index Rule List of Water Bodies.	847
ENVIR	ONMENTAL QUALITY, Department of, Title 17	
AMD NEW REP	Recordkeeping, and Inspection for Businesses	848-863
	SPECIAL NOTICE AND TABLE SECTION	
Funct	ions of Administrative Rule Review Committee.	864-865
How to	O Use ARM and MAR.	866
Accum	ulative Table.	867-878
Board	s and Councils Appointees.	879-891

Vacancies on Boards and Councils.

892-913

BEFORE THE CLASSIFICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the proposed)	NOTICE OF PROPOSED
amendment of ARM 6.6.8301,)	AMENDMENT
concerning updating references)	
to the NCCI Basic Manual for)	NO PUBLIC HEARING
Workers Compensation and)	CONTEMPLATED
Employers Liability Insurance)	
1996 ed. and adoption)	
of new classifications)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On July 6, 2001, the Montana Classification Review Committee proposes to amend ARM 6.6.8301 concerning updating references to the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance 1996 ed. and adoption of new classifications for specialty contractors that install or maintain cable tv or telephone lines.
- The Montana Classification Review Committee will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in the rulemaking process and need an alternative format this notice. accessible of Ιf you require Classification Review accommodation. contact the Montana Committee no later than 5:00 p.m., on June 4, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation needed. Please contact the Montana Classification Review Committee, attn: Tim Hughes, National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc., 7220 West Jefferson Avenue, Suite 310, Lakewood, Colorado 80235, telephone (303) 969-9456; fax (303) 969-9423; e-mail tim_hughes@ncci.com.
- 3. The rule, as proposed to be amended, appears as follows (new text is underlined; text to be deleted is interlined):
- 6.6.8301 ESTABLISHMENT OF CLASSIFICATION FOR COMPENSATION PLAN NO. 2 (1) The committee hereby adopts and incorporates by reference the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance, 1996 ed., as supplemented through March 1, 2001, August 1, 1999, which establishes classifications with respect to employers electing to be bound by compensation plan No. 2 as provided in Title 39, chapter 71, part 22, MCA. A copy of the Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance is available for public inspection at the office of the Commissioner of Insurance, 840 Helena Ave., P.O. Box 4009, Helena, MT 59620-4009. Copies of the Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance may be obtained by writing to the Montana Classification Review Committee in care of the National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc., 7220 West Jefferson Avenue, Suite 310, Lakewood, Colorado 80235. Persons obtaining a copy of the Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Insurance must pay the committee's cost of providing such copies.

(2) Remains the same.

AUTH: Sec. 33-16-1012, MCA

IMP: Sec. 2-4-103, 33-16-1012, MCA

In this issue of the Register, the Classification Review Committee is amending ARM 6.6.8301 effective May 25, that changes the date of the supplements in (1) to December 31, 2000. So, in effect, the proposed amendment in this notice will change the date from December 31, 2000 to March 1, 2001.

- 4. ARM 6.6.8301 is being amended to update references to the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability. Changes to the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability affect classifications for those employers listed below:
 - A. Code 7611 Telephone or Cable TV Line Installation Contractors, Underground
 - B. Code 7612 Telephone or Cable TV Line Installation Contractors, Overhead
 - C. Code 7613 Telephone or Cable TV Line Installation -Contractors, Service Lines & Connections
- 5. This amendment is intended to become effective on July 6, 2001.
- 6. Concerned persons may present their data, views, or arguments concerning the proposed amendment in writing to Tim Hughes, National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc., 7220 West Jefferson Avenue, Suite 310, Lakewood, Colorado 80235, or by electronic mail address to tim_hughes@ncci.com and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., June 21, 2001.
- 7. If persons who are directly affected by the proposed amendment wish to express their data, views and arguments orally or in writing at a public hearing, they must make written request for a hearing and submit this request along with any written comments they have to Tim Hughes, c/o National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc., 7220 West Jefferson Avenue, Suite 310, Lakewood, Colorado 80235, or by electronic mail to tim_hughes@ncci.com no later than June 21, 2001.
- 8. If the committee receives requests for a public hearing on the proposed amendment from either 10% or 25, whichever is less, of the persons who are directly affected by the proposed action; from the appropriate administrative rule review committee of the legislature; from a governmental subdivision or agency; or from an association having not less than 25 members

who will be directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. Notice of the hearing will be published in the Montana Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly affected has been determined to be 15 businesses based on the 150 persons who have indicated interest in the rules of this committee and who the committee has determined could be directly affected by these rules.

- The Montana Classification Review Committee maintains a list of concerned persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this committee. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specify that the person wishes to rulemaking receive notices regarding actions Classification Review Committee. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to Tim Hughes, National Council Compensation Insurance, Inc., 7220 West Jefferson Avenue, Suite 310, Lakewood, Colorado 80235, or by electronic mail to tim_hughes@ncci.com, or by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the Montana Classification Review Committee.
- 10. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

CLASSIFICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE

By: /s/ Laurence Hubbard
Laurence Hubbard
Chairperson

By: /s/ Elizabeth L. Griffing
Elizabeth L. Griffing
Rules Reviewer

Certified to the Secretary of State on May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ALTERNATIVE HEALTH CARE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the proposed)	NOTICE OF	PROPOSED
amendment of ARM 8.4.301,)	AMENDMENT	•
8.4.405, 8.4.508, 8.4.510 and)		
8.4.511 pertaining to fees,)		
continuing education for)		
naturopathic physicians and)		
midwives, licensure of out-of-)		
state applicants and direct-)		
entry midwife protocol standard)		
list required for application)		

NO PUBLIC HEARING CONTEMPLATED

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On June 25, 2001, the Board of Alternative Health Care proposes to amend the above-stated rules.
- 2. The Department of Commerce will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in the rulemaking process and need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the Board of Alternative Health Care no later than 5:00 p.m., on June 15, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Cheryl Brandt, Board of Alternative Health Care, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2394; Montana Relay 1-800-253-4091; TDD (406) 444-2978; facsimile (406) 841-2305; e-mail cbrandt@ state.mt.us.
- 3. The proposed amendments will read as follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined)
 - 8.4.301 FEES (1) through (2)(g) will remain the same.
 (h) midwife examination 500 800
 - (i) through (n) will remain the same.

Auth: Sec. 37-26-201, 37-27-105, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-26-201, 37-27-105, 37-27-210, MCA

REASON: The Board is proposing the amendment to this rule to pass on to the license applicant the fee increase charged to the Board by the national testing entity for the cost of providing the national written midwives' exam. The cost to the Board was increased by \$300 effective January 1, 2001. There will be no net increase in revenue to the Board because all of the fees collected are being paid directly to the testing agency.

8.4.405 NATUROPATHIC PHYSICIAN CONTINUING EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS (1) through (2)(a) will remain the same.

- (b) Implementation for continuing education shall be as follows:
- (i) One continuing education credit shall be granted for each hour of participation in the continuing education activity excluding breaks and meals. A licensed naturopath must earn at least 15 continuing education credits within the 12 months prior to renewal on April 30 of each year. must be in naturopathic pharmacy, five additional in obstetrics if licensee has childbirth specialty certificate.) A maximum of two credits by cassette or videotape will be A certificate of completion or an outline of course content must be submitted by the licensee for each cassette or videotape for the maximum two continuing education credits to The total number of continuing education credits be granted. obtained via the internet and/or correspondence courses will be limited to three credits.

Auth: Sec. 37-1-319, 37-26-201, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-1-306, MCA

REASON: The Board is proposing the amendment to this rule to limit the number of continuing education (CE) hours obtained by correspondence courses or on the internet to three out of the 15 hours annually required for naturopathic physicians. The Board has received CE reports in which the licensee submitted for credit only programs taken by correspondence or on the internet. The licensees were not exposed to programs involving interaction with their peers or with an instructor. The Board would like to ensure that the licensees have some exposure to these interactive programs as a protection to the public.

8.4.508 MIDWIVES CONTINUING EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS

- (1) through (2)(a) will remain the same.
- (b) Implementation for continuing education shall be as follows:
- (i) One continuing education credit shall be granted for each hour of participation in the continuing education activity excluding breaks and meals. A licensed direct-entry midwife must earn at least 14 continuing education credits within the 12 months prior to renewal on April 30 of each year. A maximum of two credits by cassette or videotape will be allowed. A certificate of completion or an outline of course content must be submitted by the licensee for each cassette or videotape of the maximum two continuing education credits to be granted. The total number of continuing education credits obtained via the internet and/or correspondence courses will be limited to three credits.

Auth: Sec. 37-1-319, 37-27-105, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-1-306, MCA

<u>REASON:</u> The Board is proposing the amendment to this rule to limit the number of continuing education (CE) hours obtained

by correspondence courses or on the internet to three out of the 14 hours annually required for direct-entry midwives. The Board has received CE reports in which the licensee submitted for credit only programs taken by correspondence or on the internet. The licensees were not exposed to programs involving interaction with their peers or with an instructor. The board would like to ensure that the licensee has some exposure to these interactive programs as a protection to the public.

8.4.510 LICENSURE OF OUT-OF-STATE APPLICANTS

- (1) through (1)(b) will remain the same.
- (c) The candidate shall supply proof of successful completion of all parts of the North American registry of midwives (NARM) examination with a <u>scaled</u> score of 75% or higher. Candidate scores on the examination must be forwarded by the exam agency directly to the board;
 - (d) through (f) will remain the same.

Auth: Sec. 37-27-105, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-1-304, <u>37-27-202</u>, MCA

REASON: Effective February 27, 1998, the Board adopted a rule amendment to reflect a change in the way the national testing agency was reporting the passing examination score - from a percentage score of 75 to a scaled score of 75. There is a reference to the national exam passing score in the rule concerning out-of-state license applicants that was not changed in the initial rule notice. The Board is proposing that this rule be amended so that the national examination score is accurately and uniformly reflected in the rules.

- 8.4.511 DIRECT-ENTRY MIDWIFE PROTOCOL STANDARD LIST REQUIRED FOR APPLICATION (1) through (3)(b) will remain the same.
 - (c) care schedule;
 - (d) through (4)(q) will remain the same.

Auth: Sec. 37-1-131, 37-27-105, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-27-201, MCA

<u>REASON:</u> The proposed rule change will correct a typographical error that occurred in a previous rule notice.

- 4. Concerned persons may submit their data, views or arguments concerning the proposed actions in writing to the Board of Alternative Health Care, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, by facsimile to (406) 841-2305, or by e-mail to cbrandt@state.mt.us to be received no later than 5:00 p.m., June 21, 2001.
- 5. If persons who are directly affected by the proposed actions wish to express their data, views or arguments orally or in writing at a public hearing, they must make written request for a hearing and submit the request along with any

comments they have to the Board of Alternative Health Care, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, by facsimile to (406) 841-2305, or by e-mail to cbrandt@state.mt.us to be received no later than 5:00 p.m., June 21, 2001.

- 6. If the Board receives requests for a public hearing on the proposed actions from either 10 percent or 25, whichever is less, of those persons who are directly affected by the proposed actions, from the appropriate administrative rule review committee of the legislature, from a governmental agency or subdivision or from an association having no less than 25 members who will be directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. Notice of the hearing will be published in the Montana Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly affected has been determined to be six based on the 63 licensed naturopathic physicians and midwives in Montana.
- 7. The Board of Alternative Health Care maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this Board. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding all Board of Alternative Health Care administrative rulemaking proceedings or other administrative proceedings. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to the Board of Alternative Health Care, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, faxed to the office at (406) 841-2305, e-mailed to cbrandt@state.mt.us or may be made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the agency.
- 8. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

BOARD OF ALTERNATIVE HEALTH CARE DOLLY BROWDER, L.M., CHAIRMAN

By: /s/ Annie M. Bartos
ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

By: <u>/s/ Annie M. Bartos</u>
ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER

Certified to the Secretary of State, May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF HEARING AID DISPENSERS DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the proposed) NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
amendment of ARM 8.20.402,) ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT
8.20.403 and 8.20.412 pertaining)
to fees, examination - pass/fail)
point and minimum testing and)
recording procedures)

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On June 27, 2001, at 9:00 a.m., a public hearing will be held in the Division of Professional and Occupational Licensing conference room, 4th Floor, Federal Building, 301 South Park Avenue, Helena, Montana to consider the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules.
- 2. The Department of Commerce will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers no later than 5:00 p.m., on June 15, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Linda Grief, Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513; telephone (406) 841-2395; Montana Relay 1-800-253-4091; TDD (406) 444-2978; facsimile (406) 841-2305; e-mail compolhad@state.mt.us.
- 3. The proposed amendments will read as follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined)
 - 8.20.402 FEES (1) The fees shall be as follows:
- (a) Application fee (includes initial written and practical examination) \$\frac{175}{225}\$
 - (b) will remain the same.
 - (c) Re-examination written

65 170

(d) Re-examination--practical (includes renewal
of trainee license)

55 130

(e) through (2) will remain the same.

Auth: Sec. 37-1-134, 37-16-202, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-1-134, 37-16-202, 37-16-402, 37-16-404,

MCA

REASON: Increased examination costs from the International Hearing Society necessitate increasing the revenue base for this program to meet expected expenditures. It is anticipated that this amendment will generate increased revenues of \$400 per year based on the examination fee for eight applicants per year.

8.20.403 EXAMINATION - PASS/FAIL POINT (1) through (5) will remain the same.

(6) An applicant who applies to re-take the examination after the failure of two practical examinations and completing the two year waiting period, must complete an additional 180 hours of supervised training in a board supervised training program. In addition, the applicant must complete the equivalent of two years of required continuing education before re-taking all sections of the practical examination, with the process to be continued at the discretion of the board.

Auth: Sec. 37-16-202, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-16-403, 37-16-405, 37-16-406, MCA

REASON: The board is proposing this amendment to clarify the examination process should an applicant fail two practical exams and wish to re-take the examination after the two year waiting period.

8.20.412 MINIMUM TESTING AND RECORDING PROCEDURES

- (1) and (2) will remain the same.
- (3) All audiometers shall be calibrated to ANSI standards once a year. A copy of an electronic audiometer calibration made within the past 12 months shall be submitted to the board by the licensee on June 30 annually made available by the licensee upon board request.

Auth: Sec. 37-16-202, MCA

IMP: Sec. 37-16-202, 37-16-411, MCA

<u>REASON:</u> The Board is proposing the amendment to this rule to eliminate the need for all licensees to submit the audiometer calibrations annually on June 30th and will allow the Board to randomly audit licensees for compliance. This will reduce staff time and storage requirements in connection with the Board office handling the verification.

- 4. Concerned persons may present their data, views or arguments either orally or in writing at the hearing. Written data, views or arguments may also be submitted to the Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, by facsimile to (406) 841-2305, or by e-mail to compolhad@state.mt.us and must be received no later than the close of the hearing on June 27, 2001. If comments are submitted in writing, the Board requests that the person submit nine copies of their comments.
- 5. F. Lon Mitchell, attorney, has been designated to preside over and conduct this hearing.
- 6. The Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this Board. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding all Board of Hearing Aid

Dispensers administrative rulemaking proceedings or other administrative proceedings. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to the Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers, 301 South Park Avenue, P.O. Box 200513, Helena, Montana 59620-0513, faxed to the office at (406) 841-2305, e-mailed to compolhad@state.mt.us or may be made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the agency.

7. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

BOARD OF HEARING AID DISPENSERS DAVID KING, CHAIRMAN

By: /s/ Annie M. Bartos
ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

By: <u>/s/ Annie M. Bartos</u>
ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER

Certified to the Secretary of State, May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the proposed)	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
amendment of ARM 24.11.443,)	ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT
relating to unemployment)	
insurance benefit claims)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On June 15, 2001, at 10:00 a.m., a public hearing will be held in Room 104 of the Walt Sullivan Building (Department of Labor and Industry Building), 1327 Lockey, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment of ARM 24.11.443, related to unemployment insurance benefit claims.
- The Department of Labor and Industry will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative you require format of this notice. Ιf accommodation, contact the Department by no later than 5:00 p.m., June 8, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact the Unemployment Insurance Division, Attn: Mr. Roy Mulvaney, P.O. Box 8020, Helena, MT59604-8020; telephone (406) 444-9036; (406) 444-1394; (406) 444-0532; fax orrmulvaney@state.mt.us. Persons with disabilities who need an alternative accessible format of this document in order to this participate in rule-making process should Mr. Mulvaney.
- 3. The rule as proposed to be amended provides as follows: (new matter underlined, deleted matter interlined)
- 24.11.443 BIWEEKLY CLAIMS (1) through (3) Remain the same.
- (4) A claimant must report all hours of insured work and gross wages for insured work for each week claimed. The wages must be reported for the week in which they were earned rather than for the week in which they were paid, except as otherwise provided in this rule.
- (a) Any reduction in hours of work or wages for any week claimed caused by a claimant's absence from work for reasons other than a lack of work cannot be taken into account in determining whether the claimant was totally unemployed in that week, so as to be eligible for full or partial benefits or waiting period credit for the week. For that reason, all time off from work, whether paid or unpaid, during a week claimed for reasons other than a lack of work is considered as hours of work for the week. Similarly, wages lost for unpaid time off from work for reasons other than a lack of work are considered as gross earnings for the week.
 - (b) through (h) Remain the same, but are renumbered (a)

through (g).

(5) Remains the same.

AUTH: 39-51-301 and 39-51-302, MCA

IMP: 39-51-201 and Title 39, chapter 51, parts 21 through 23,
MCA

Reasonable necessity: There is reasonable necessity to amend ARM 24.11.443 as proposed in order to delete a confusing and unworkable portion of the rule. Subsection (4)(a) was adopted effective December 31, 2000, and has caused confusion for claimants, Unemployment Insurance Division staff, adjudicatory tribunals since adoption. In addition, staff has been unable to apply subsection (4)(a) in a way that is consistent with the underlying principles of unemployment law and basic fairness, and staff has been unable to verify whether claimants are truthfully responding to questions regarding application of subsection (4)(a). As a result of the past four months of experience with subsection (4)(a), the Department has concluded that subsection (4)(a) is unworkable and should be repealed.

4. Interested persons may present their data, views, or arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written data, views or arguments may also be submitted to:

Lynn Long, Bureau Chief

Benefits Bureau

Unemployment Insurance Division

Department of Labor and Industry

P.O. Box 8020

Helena, Montana 59604-8011

and must be received by no later than 5:00 p.m., June 22, 2001. Comments may also be submitted electronically as noted in the following paragraph.

An electronic copy of this Notice of Public Hearing is available through the Department's site on the World Wide Web at http://dli.state.mt.us/calendar.htm, under the Calendar Events, Administrative Rule Hearings section. persons may make comments on the proposed rules via the comment forum, http://forums.dli.state.mt.us, linked to the Notice of Public Hearing, but those comments must be posted to the comment forum by 5:00 p.m., June 22, 2001. The Department strives to make the electronic copy of this Notice of Public Hearing conform to the official version of the Notice, as printed in the Montana Administrative Register, but advises all concerned persons that in the event of a discrepancy between the official printed text of the Notice and the electronic version of the Notice, only the official printed text will be considered. addition, although the Department strives to keep its website accessible at all times, concerned persons should be aware that the website may be unavailable during some periods, due to system maintenance or technical problems, and that a person's technical difficulties in accessing or posting to the comment

forum does not excuse late submission of comments.

- The Department maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rule-making actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have their name added to the mailing list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding any specific topic or topics over which the Department has rulemaking authority. Such written request may be delivered to Mark Cadwallader, 1327 Lockey St., Room 412, Helena, Montana, mailed to Mark Cadwallader, P.O. Box 1728, Helena, MT 59624-1728, faxed office at (406) 444-1394, the e-mailed mcadwallader@state.mt.us, or made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the Department.
- 7. The bill sponsor notice provisions of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.
- 8. The Department proposes to make the amendment effective as soon as feasible.
- 9. The Hearings Bureau of the Centralized Services Division of the Department has been designated to preside over and conduct the hearing.

/s/ KEVIN BRAUN Kevin Braun Rule Reviewer /s/ MIKE FOSTER
Mike Foster, Commissioner
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRY

Certified to the Secretary of State: May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF LIVESTOCK OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the proposed) NOTICE OF PROPOSED adoption of a new rule) ADOPTION

pertaining to Ruminant Feeds)

for Livestock Prohibition) NO PUBLIC HEARING CONTEMPLATED

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On June 23, 2001, the board of livestock proposes to adopt a new rule pertaining to Ruminant Feeds for Livestock Prohibition.
- 2. The board of livestock will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in the rulemaking process and need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the department of livestock no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 12, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Marc Bridges, 301 N. Roberts St. Rm. 308A, PO Box 202001, Helena, MT 59620-2001; phone: (406)444-7323; TTD number: 1-800-253-4091; fax: (406)444-1929.
 - 3. The proposed rule provides as follows:

RULE I RUMINANT FEEDS FOR LIVESTOCK PROHIBITION

- (1) Animal protein derived from mammalian tissues shall be prohibited in ruminant feeds in Montana.
- (2) "Protein derived from mammalian tissues" means any protein containing portions of mammalian animals, excluding:
 - (a) blood and blood products;
 - (b) gelatin;
- (c) inspected meat products which have been cooked and offered for human food and further heat processed for feed (such as plate waste and used cellulosic food casings);
 - (d) milk products (milk and milk proteins); and
- (e) any product whose only mammalian protein consists entirely of porcine or equine protein.
- (3) "Ruminant" includes any member of the order of animals which has a stomach in four chambers (rumen, reticulum, omasum, and abomasum) through which feed passes in digestion. The prohibition includes, but is not limited to, cattle, buffalo, sheep, goats, deer, elk, and antelopes.

AUTH: 81-2-102, MCA IMP: 81-2-102, MCA

4. Rule I is reasonably necessary because current scientific data indicates that animal protein derived from mammalian tissues in ruminant feeds may be a means of transmission of Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE). Although BSE has not been diagnosed in Montana, uncertainty

about the origin and transmissibility of BSE requires measures, such as this proposed rule, to prevent the establishment and amplification of BSE in Montana through ruminant feed.

- 5. Concerned persons may submit their data, views or arguments concerning the proposed new rule in writing to Marc Bridges, 301 N. Roberts Street Room 308A, PO Box 202001, Helena, MT 59620-2002, or emailed to bridgesm@state.mt.us to be received no later than June 21, 2001.
- 6. If persons who are directly affected by the proposed new rule wish to express their data, views and arguments orally or in writing at a public hearing, they must make a written request for a hearing and submit this request along with any written comments they have to the same address as above. A request for hearing must be received no later than June 21, 2001.
- 7. If the board receives requests for a public hearing on the proposed action from either 10% or 25, whichever is less, of the persons who are directly affected by the proposed action; from the appropriate administrative rule review committee of the legislature; from a governmental subdivision or agency; or from an association having not less than 25 members who will be directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. Notice of the hearing will be published in the Montana Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly affected has been determined to be more than 25 based upon the population of the state.
- 8. The divisions of the Montana department of livestock maintain a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this board. Persons who wish to have their name added to a list shall make a written request that includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies the area of interest that the person wishes to receive notices regarding a particular subject or subjects or fees charged by the department. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to Marc Bridges, 301 N. Roberts Street Room 308A, PO Box 202001, Helena, MT 59620-2001.
- 9. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

DEPARTMENT OF LIVESTOCK

By: <u>/s/ Marc Bridges</u>
Marc Bridges, Exec. Officer,
Board of Livestock
Department of Livestock

By: <u>/s/ Bernard A. Jacobs</u>
Bernard A. Jacobs, Rule Reviewer
Livestock Chief Legal Counsel

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF LIVESTOCK OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of amendment) NOTICE OF PROPOSED of ARM 32.2.502 as it relates) AMENDMENT to Specially Qualified Deputy) Stock Inspectors) NO PUBLIC HEARING CONTEMPLATED

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On June 23, 2001, the board of livestock proposes to amend ARM 32.2.502 as it relates to Specially Qualified Deputy Stock Inspectors.
- 2. The board of livestock will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in the rulemaking process and need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the department of livestock no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 12, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Jack Wiseman, 301 N. Roberts St. Rm. 203, PO Box 202001, Helena, MT 59620-2001; phone: (406)444-2045; TTD number: 1-800-253-4091; fax: (406)444-1929.
- 3. The rule as proposed to be amended provides as follows, stricken matter interlined, new matter underlined:
- 32.2.502 CERTIFICATION OF SPECIALLY QUALIFIED DEPUTY STOCK INSPECTORS (1) A specially qualified deputy stock inspector shall be certified by the district inspector in the county, subsequent to attainment of proper training and a demonstration of a satisfactory knowledge of all appropriate laws, rules and regulations, proper completion of inspection documents and job performance duties. (1) Persons already appointed as "deputy state stock inspectors" as defined in 81-3-201(1), MCA, may become appointed as "specially qualified deputy stock inspectors" as defined in 81-3-201(5), MCA, upon completion of and according to the following criteria:
- (a) recommendation for appointment by the appropriate district investigator which must be based, at least in part, on the district investigator's personal knowledge of the applicant's demonstrated ability to conduct accurate and timely livestock investigations;
- (b) completion of a written examination by correctly answering 80% of 25 multiple choice and true/false questions pertaining to horse inspection laws, specifically, 81-3-205, 81-3-210, 81-3-211, and 81-3-212, MCA;
- (c) successful completion of a practical examination that requires the deputy state stock inspector to correctly and accurately complete the lifetime permit from a color photo of:
- (i) an owner-raised no-brand horse with specific markings;

- (ii) a horse with specific markings branded with owners brand, taking up proof of ownership;
- (iii) a branded horse with specific markings, taking up proof of ownership and health certificate; and
- (iv) a branded horse with specific markings that was purchased out-of-state;
- (d) within 30 days, complete 10 separate lifetime inspections without error under the direct supervision of the district investigator;
 - (e) demonstrate ability to:
- (i) correctly verify brand ownership through the brand office;
 - (ii) transfer bills of sale; and
- (iii) deny permit applications due to incomplete or inadequate supporting documentation;
- (f) failure to comply with relevant statutes, rules, or department of livestock policy may result in immediate termination of appointment.

AUTH: 81-1-201, 81-3-202, MCA

IMP: 81-1-201, 81-3-202, 81-3-203, MCA

- 4. ARM 32.2.502 is being amended to establish minimum standards by which individuals may qualify to become specially qualified deputy stock inspector.
- 5. Concerned persons may submit their data, views or arguments concerning the proposed amendment in writing to Jack Wiseman, 301 N. Roberts Street Room 203, PO Box 202001, Helena, MT 59620-2002, or emailed to jwiseman@state.mt.us to be received no later than June 21, 2001.
- 6. If persons who are directly affected by the proposed amendment wish to express their data, views and arguments orally or in writing at a public hearing, they must make a written request for a hearing and submit this request along with any written comments they have to the same address as above. A request for hearing must be received no later than June 21, 2001.
- 7. If the board receives requests for a public hearing on the proposed action from either 10% or 25, whichever is less, of the persons who are directly affected by the proposed action; from the appropriate administrative rule review committee of the legislature; from a governmental subdivision or agency; or from an association having not less than 25 members who will be directly affected, a hearing will be held at a later date. Notice of the hearing will be published in the Montana Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly affected has been determined to be more than 25 based upon the population of the state.
- 8. The divisions of the Montana department of livestock maintain a list of interested persons who wish to receive

notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this board. Persons who wish to have their name added to a list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies the area of interest that the person wishes to receive notices regarding a particular subject or subjects or fees charged by the Department. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to Marc Bridges, 301 N. Roberts Street - Room 308A, PO Box 202001, Helena, MT 59620-2001.

9. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

DEPARTMENT OF LIVESTOCK

By: <u>/s/ Marc Bridges</u>
Marc Bridges, Exec. Officer,
Board of Livestock
Department of Livestock

By: <u>/s/ Bernard A. Jacobs</u>
Bernard A. Jacobs, Rule Reviewer
Livestock Chief Legal Counsel

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF LAND COMMISSIONERS AND THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the adoption)	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
of temporary rules on)	ON PROPOSED ADOPTION OF
biodiversity and old-growth)	TEMPORARY RULE
management)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

1. On June 13, 2001, the Department of Natural Resources and Conservation will hold a public hearing at 6:30 p.m. at the Department of Fish, Wildlife and Parks, 3201 Spurgin Road at Missoula, Montana, to consider the adoption of temporary rules relating to the management of biodiversity and old-growth timber on state trust forest lands.

On April 16, 2001, SB 354 became effective. These temporary rules are necessary to ensure that the Montana State Board of Land Commissioners' timber management policies are consistent with recent legislative enactment. The State Forest Land Management Plan is the governing policy of the board regarding forest management under the authority of 77-1-202, MCA. Specifically, the SFLMP biodiversity standards and guidance provide the framework for the timber management program, which is directly affected by the passage of SB 354. The overall effect of these rules would be to revise current state timber management policies to ensure consistency with 77-5-101, MCA (SB 354).

Given the existing prohibition on old growth timber harvest (<u>Friends of the Wild Swan, Inc. v. Arthur Clinch</u>, Cause No. BDV 2000-369), it is imperative that the department (under the direction of the board) move expeditiously to enact temporary rules in order to implement 77-5-101, MCA (SB 354).

Currently, approximately 8.5 million board feet (\$1.7 million value) of board approved and sold volume are enjoined by the Court's ruling. (Friends, supra). This injunction poses a direct cost to the school trust beneficiaries and taxpayers in Montana. The board's adoption of temporary rules implementing 77-5-101, MCA (SB 354) would serve as the necessary vehicle to lift the injunction, while also ensuring that the previous decisions of the board are carried out.

The department finds it necessary to adopt temporary rules in this area in order to implement the statute as closely as possible to its effective date.

2. The Department of Natural Resources and Conservation and the Board of Land Commissioners will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative

accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact the agency no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 4, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Tom Schultz, Forest Management Bureau Chief, Department of Natural Resources and Conservation, 2705 Spurgin Road, Missoula, MT 59804; telephone (406) 542-4306; FAX (406) 542-4217.

- 3. The temporary rule will be effective until October 1, 2001. Between the effective date of this rule and its termination on October 1, 2001, it is contemplated that no new timber sales which will harvest old growth units will be brought before the board.
 - 4. The proposed temporary rule is as follows:
- RULE I BIODIVERSITY AND OLD-GROWTH MANAGEMENT STANDARDS (1) The department of natural resources and conservation herein adopts and incorporates by reference "Montana Department of Natural Resources and Conservation 2001. State Forest Land Management Plan Biodiversity Guidance," which sets forth the biodiversity guidance (2001) addressing the management of timber from state trust forests, including but not limited to the following:
 - (a) coarse filter methodology;
 - (b) appropriate cover type and structure conditions;
 - (c) snag and snag recruit retention;
 - (d) emulation of natural disturbance processes;
 - (e) patch sizes;
 - (f) a definition of old growth; and
- (g) a discussion of how old growth stands could be leased, licensed, sold, or exchanged to achieve fair market value.
- (2) A copy of the biodiversity guidance may be obtained from Scott McLeod, Supervisor, Forest Improvement Section, Department of Natural Resources and Conservation, 2705 Spurgin Road, Missoula, MT 59804.

AUTH: 76-12-112, 77-1-202, 77-1-209, 77-5-201, 77-5-202, and 77-5-204, MCA

IMP: 77-5-101, MCA (SB 354)

- 5. The statement of reasonable necessity for the temporary rule is set forth in paragraph 1.
- 6. Concerned persons may submit their data, views or arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written data, views or arguments may also be submitted to Tom Schultz, Forest Management Bureau Chief, Department of Natural Resources and Conservation, 2705 Spurgin Road, Missoula, MT 59804; faxed to (406)542-4217 or e-mailed to tschultz@state.mt.us and must be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 21, 2001.
- 7. Tom Schultz, Forest Management Bureau Chief, Department of Natural Resources and Conservation, 2705 Spurgin

Road, Missoula, MT 59804 has been designated to preside over and conduct the hearing.

- 8. The agency maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specify that the person wishes to receive notices regarding conservation districts and resource development, forestry, oil and gas conservation, trust land management, water resources or combination thereof. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to Emily Cooper, Department of Natural Resources and Conservation, P.O. Box 201601, 1625 11th Avenue, Helena, MT 59620-1601, faxed to the office at (406) 444-2684, or may be made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the agency.
- 9. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA apply and have been fulfilled.

BOARD OF LAND COMMISSIONERS DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION

By: <u>/s/ Judy Martz</u>

JUDY MARTZ

Chair

By: /s/ Arthur R. Clinch
ARTHUR R. CLINCH
Director

By: /s/ Donald D. MacIntyre
DONALD D. MACINTYRE
Rule Reviewer

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the proposed)	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
amendment of rules regarding)	ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT
fees for Administrative Rules)	
of Montana and Montana)	
Administrative Register)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On June 13, 2001 a public hearing will be held at 10:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as possible in the Secretary of State's Office Conference Room at room 260 of the State Capitol, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment of rules regarding fees for Administrative Rules of Montana and Montana Administrative Register.
- 2. The Secretary of State will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you request an accommodation, contact the Secretary of State no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 8, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Lynn Keller, Secretary of State's Office, P.O. Box 202805, Helena, MT 59620-2805; telephone (406) 444-9009; FAX (406) 444-9002; e-mail lkeller@state.mt.us.
- 3. The rules as proposed to be amended provide as follows, stricken matter interlined, new matter underlined:
- 1.2.421 SUBSCRIPTION TO THE ARM ADMINISTRATIVE RULES OF MONTANA AND MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER--COST (1) The secretary of state is required by law, (2-4-312, MCA and 2-4-313, MCA) to distribute copies of the ARM Administrative Rules of Montana and Montana Administrative Rregister and revisions thereto, free of charge, to certain federal, state and county agencies enumerated therein.
- (2) The secretary is also authorized to make available copies of the ARM Administrative Rules of Montana, ARM updates, and the register, and revisions thereto to the public at prices fixed to cover publication and mailing costs.
- (3) The costs for the Administrative Rules of Montana and the Montana Administrative Register beginning with calendar year 1988 are as follows:
 - (a) Administrative Rules of Montana \$350.00;
- (b) Four <u>quarterly</u> issues of updates to the Administrative Rules of Montana \$250.00 per calendar year;
- (c) Montana Administrative Register \$300.00 per calendar year;
 - (d) Partial year subscriptions will be prorated.
 - (4) Extra title charges are as follows:
 - (a) Initial purchase of title, \$50.00 except for two-

multi-part titles which may be purchased for \$100.00 \$125.00 a
title;

- (b) Updates to extra titles $\frac{\text{will be are}}{\text{are}}$ \$50.00 per calendar year per title.
- (5) All purchase and subscription fees must be paid in advance and are not refundable.

AUTH: Sec. 2-4-306 and 2-4-313, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-4-306, 2-4-313, MCA

- 1.2.422 MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER (1) The Administrative Rules of Montana are kept current by a publication known as the Montana Administrative Register.
- (2) The Montana Administrative Register is comprised of three four sections:
- (a) The first is the notice section wherein the department or agency has given notice of intended administrative rulemaking action-;
- (b) The second, the rule section, contains the results of the action wherein a rule has been adopted, amended or repealed.; This is known as the rule section of the register.
- (c) The third is the interpretation section containing attorney general opinions and agency declaratory rulings.;
- (d) The fourth section is the special notice and table section. This section includes functions of the administrative rule review committee, instructions on how to use the Administrative Rules of Montana and Montana Administrative Register, and an accumulative table of past rulemaking actions. In each even-numbered issue of the register, vacancies on and appointments to boards and councils are published.
- (3) The register will always be maintained in a volume separate from the ARM Administrative Rules of Montana.

AUTH: Sec. 2-4-306, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-4-306, MCA

1.2.423 AGENCY FILING FEES (1) Beginning February 1, 1988 July 1, 2001, all agencies will be required to pay a \$35.00 \$40.00 per page filing fee for all pages submitted which are applicable to the notice and rule section of for printing in the Montana Administrative Register. The secretary of state will bill monthly on a per-issue basis for all pages submitted fees incurred by the agency.

AUTH: Sec. 2-4-306, 2-4-313, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-4-306, 2-4-313, MCA

- 5. State law requires that the fees of the Secretary of State be commensurate with overall office costs. Fees have not been increased since 1988.
- 6. The cumulative amount of the increase for all persons for the Montana Administrative Register will be approximately \$13,500 including fees for purchase of initial multi-part

titles.

- 7. Concerned persons may present their data, views, or arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written data, views or arguments may also be submitted to Janice Doggett, Secretary of State's Office, P.O. Box 202801, Helena, Montana 59620-2801, or by e-mailing jdoggett@state.mt.us, and must be received no later than June 21, 2001.
- 8. Janice Doggett, address given in paragraph 7 above, has been designated to preside over and conduct the hearing.
- 9. The Secretary of State maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding administrative rules, corporations, elections, notaries, records, uniform commercial code or combination thereof. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to the Secretary of State's Office, Administrative Rules Bureau, 1236 Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 202801, Helena, MT 59620-2801, faxed to the office at (406) 444-5833, e-mailed to klubke@state.mt.us, or may be made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the Secretary of State's Office.
- 10. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA do not apply.
- 11. These rules will be effective July 6, 2001 and will apply retroactively to July 1, 2001.

/s/ Bob Brown
BOB BROWN
Secretary of State

/s/ Janice Doggett
JANICE DOGGETT
Rule Reviewer

Dated this 14th day of May 2001

BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the proposed)	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
adoption of new rules regarding)	ON PROPOSED ADOPTION
fees for records management)	
microfilming, imaging and)	
storage services)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On June 13, 2001, a public hearing will be held at 10:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as possible in the Secretary of State's Office Conference Room at room 260 of the State Capitol, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed adoption of rules regarding fees for records management microfilming, imaging and storage services.
- 2. The Secretary of State will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative accessible format of this notice. If you request an accommodation, contact the Secretary of State no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 8, 2001, to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Lynn Keller, Secretary of State's Office, P.O. Box 202805, Helena, MT 59620-2805; telephone (406) 444-9009; FAX (406) 444-9002; e-mail lkeller@state.mt.us.
 - 3. The rules as proposed to be adopted provide as follows:

RULE I FEES FOR 16MM MICROFILM SERVICES (1) The following fees will be charged for 16mm microfilm per 1000 pages or any portion thereof:

(a)	MRD-2 5" x 8" paperwork	\$ 34 . 12
(b)	MRD-2 8 $1/2$ " x 11" and legal (manual)	67.57
(c)	B & H Auto Exposure	38.58
(d)	8" x 11" or 8" x 14" paperwork (rotary)	30.00
(e)	8" x 11" or 8" x 14" computer printout	
(rotary)		30.00
(f)	extreme size and weight variance (rotary)	31.50
(g)	cards-fixed weight and color (rotary)	15.75
(h)	cards-mixed weight and color (rotary)	26.25

AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA

RULE II FEES FOR 35MM MICROFILM SERVICES (1) The following fees will be charged for 35mm microfilm per 1000 pages or any portion thereof:

(a)	12" x 12"	aerial photos	\$ 68.25
(b)	16" x 20"	bound books	63.00
(c)	24" x 34"	newspapers	115.50
(B)	24" 🕶 34"	hound newspapers	136.50

(e) 48" x 48" blueprints/maps	288.75
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA	
RULE III FEES FOR 105MM MICROFILM States following fees will be charged for 105mm pages or any portion thereof:	
(a) 8" x 11" paperwork	\$ 68.25
(b) 8" x 11" or 8" x 14" computer prin (c) cards (per 1000)	77.17 77.17
(d) 16mm, 35mm, and 105mm minimum film	
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA	
IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA	
RULE IV FEES FOR FILM PROCESSING (1) will be charged for film processing:	The following fees
(a) 16mm, each 100 foot roll	\$ 3.62
(b) 16mm, each 215 foot roll(c) 35mm, each 100 foot roll	7.10 6.35
(d) 16mm, each 3M cartridge	4.73
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA	
RULE V FEES FOR FILM INSPECTING (1)	The following fees
<pre>will be charged for film inspection: (a) each 100 foot roll inspection</pre>	\$ 3.65
(b) each 215 foot roll inspection	5.23
(c) each film splice	0.79
(d) each 3M cartridge load	2.25
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA	
IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA	
RULE VI FEES FOR FILM DUPLICATION (1)	The following fees
will be charged for film duplicating:	* 6 01
(a) 16mm, each 100 foot roll(b) 16mm, each 215 foot roll	\$ 6.81 13.03
(c) 35mm, each 100 foot roll	9.21
(d) 105mm, each microfiche or jacket	0.16
(e) each reader or printer copy	0.50
(f) 16mm, 100 foot roll (silver)	9.92
(g) 35mm, 100 foot roll (silver)(h) photocopies/own labor (each copy)	14.54 0.10
(h) photocopies/own labor (each copy)(i) photocopies/our labor (each copy)	0.10
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA	
IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA	
RULE VII FEES FOR JACKET LOADING (1)	The following fees
will be charged for jacket loading:	_
(a) 16mm, each 5 channel jacket	\$ 0.3150
MAR Notice No. 44-2-109	10-5/24/01

 (b) agency's own jacket (each) (c) 35mm, 1 and 2 channel jacket (each) (d) loading 16mm aperture card (each) (e) jacket title (each) (f) jacket notching (each) (g) jacket updating (per hour) 	0.2887 0.3150 0.2625 0.2625 0.0525 18.00			
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA				
RULE VIII MISCELLANEOUS FEES (1) The f miscellaneous fees will be charged:	following			
(a) fiche title (per title) (b) indexing and document preparation	0.2625			
<pre>(per hour) (c) camera rental (per day)</pre>	18.00 95.00			
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA				
RULE IX MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES (1) The following fees will be charged for filming supplies based on actual cost by supplier:				
(a) each NMI reader bulb	\$ 10.75			
(b) 16mm, each 100 foot roll film	6.68			
(c) 16mm, each 215 foot roll film	12.95			
(d) 35mm, each 100 foot roll film(e) each box of splicing tape	13.95 15.00			
(e) jackets (1 box 16mm/1000)	65.00			
(f) fiche envelopes (1 box/1000)	37.50			
(g) microfiche reader/printer (records managemen				
bureau copies)	0.50			
(h) microfiche reader/printer (agency copies)	0.25			
(i) postage/freight (cost based on actual fee)				
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA IMP: Sec. 2-6-110, MCA				
RULE X FEES FOR RECORDS CENTER SERVICES (1) The			
following fees shall be charged for services provi	ided for			
records housed in the state records center:				
(a) storage per square foot, per month	\$ 0.2565			
(b) storage per cubic foot, per month(c) each retrieval	0.2950			
(d) each retrieval (d) each emergency retrieval	1.50 6.25			
(e) hourly charge for large retrievals,	0.25			
delivery, interfiling	22.50			
(f) hourly charge for records disposal	22.50			
(g) each disk pack storage	2.00			
(h) hourly charge for shredding confidential	00.05			
records (i) tank stores in result (non inch)	23.05			
(i) tape storage in vault (per inch)	0.055			
AUTH: Sec. 2-6-103, MCA				

IMP: Sec. 2-6-201, 2-6-202, 2-6-203 and 2-6-206, MCA

RULE XI FEES FOR RECORDS CENTER BOXES (1) The following fees shall be charged for each storage box based upon the supplier costs:

- (a) standard size A 15" x 12" x 10" \$ 1.34
- (b) standard size B 15" x 12" x 4 1/2" 1.34
- (c) drawing and map storage boxes size 1.34 24" x 12" x 10"

AUTH: Sec. 2-6-201, MCA

IMP: Sec. 2-6-202, 2-6-203 and 2-6-206, MCA

RULE XII FEES FOR IMAGING SERVICES (1) The following fees shall be charged for imaging services:

(a) each image \$0.055

(b) hourly charge for indexing and document preparation

AUTH: Sec. 2-6-201, MCA

IMP: Sec. 2-6-202, 2-6-203 and 2-6-206, MCA

- 5. State law requires that the fees of the Secretary of State be commensurate with overall costs. Fees have not been increased for most of these services since 1994.
- 6. The cumulative amount of the proposed increase among all agencies of state government is: \$6,486 for storage, \$21,462 for microfilm and \$1,158 for shredding.
- 7. Concerned persons may present their data, views, or arguments, either orally or in writing, at the hearing. Written data, views or arguments may also be submitted to Janice Doggett, Secretary of State's Office, P.O. Box 202801, Helena, Montana 59620-2801, or by e-mailing jdoggett@state.mt.us, and must be received no later than June 21, 2001.
- 8. Janice Doggett, address given in paragraph 7 above, has been designated to preside over and conduct the hearing.
- 9. The Secretary of State maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request which includes the name and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the person wishes to receive notices regarding administrative rules, corporations, elections, notaries, records, uniform commercial code or combination thereof. Such written request may be mailed or delivered to the Secretary of State's Office, Administrative Rules Bureau, 1236 Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 202801, Helena, MT 59620-2801, faxed to the office at (406) 444-5833, e-mailed to klubke@state.mt.us, or may be made by completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the Secretary of State's Office.

18.00

- 10. The bill sponsor notice requirements of 2-4-302, MCA do not apply.
- 11. The effective date of these rules will be July 6, 2001 and will be applied retroactively to July 1, 2001.

/s/ Bob Brown
BOB BROWN
Secretary of State

/s/ Janice Doggett
JANICE DOGGETT
Rule Reviewer

Dated this 14th day of May 2001

BEFORE THE CLASSIFICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the)	NOTICE	OF	AMENDMENT
amendment of ARM 6.6.8301,)			
concerning updating references)			
to the NCCI Basic Manual for)			
Workers Compensation and)			
Employers Liability Insurance)			
1996 ed. and adoption of new)			
and amended classifications)			

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On January 25, 2001, the classification review committee published a notice of proposed amendment of ARM 6.6.8301 concerning updating references to the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance 1996 ed. and adoption of new and amended classifications at page 132, 2001 Montana Administrative Register, issue number 2.
- 2. The department has amended ARM 6.6.8301 exactly as proposed.
 - 3. This rule shall become effective July 1, 2001.
 - 4. No comments or testimony were received.

CLASSIFICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE

By: <u>/s/ Laurence Hubbard</u>
Laurence Hubbard
Chairperson

By: <u>/s/ Elizabeth Griffing</u>
Elizabeth Griffing
Rules Reviewer

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF OUTFITTERS DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment)	NOTICE OF AMENDMENT
of ARM 8.39.514 and 8.39.518)	
pertaining to licensure and)	
fees)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On December 7, 2000, the Board of Outfitters published a notice of proposed amendment of the above-stated rules at page 3295, 2000 Montana Administrative Register, issue number 23. The hearing was held January 3, 2001.
- 2. The Board has amended ARM 8.39.514 and 8.39.518 exactly as proposed.
- 3. The Board received fourteen written comments and two persons testified at the hearing. The comments received and the Board's response are as follows:

COMMENT NO. 1: Written comment was received from Robin Cunningham, representing the Fishing Outfitters Association of Montana, suggesting that in terms of fee increases, his option C (\$275 - new outfitter licenses; \$85 - guide licenses; \$265 - outfitter license renewal; \$1,100 - new license applications; \$300 - late license fees) would be more appropriate. In addition Mr. Cunningham's comment stated his support of the temporary guide license rule and further recommends that the Board create a Montana Board of Outfitters budget committee.

RESPONSE: The board acknowledged the comment and responds that the board has both a legal and a fiduciary obligation to set fees commensurate with costs. Mr. Cunningham's fiscal recommendation would create a \$56,074 shortage and would not be financially sound. The Board has assigned a committee to review the budget.

COMMENTS NO. 2-16: Written and oral comments were received stating opposition to the increase in fees. The commentors felt they had not received a satisfactory explanation as to Board/staff budget expenditures and stated that the fees had recently been increased. Many of the comments recommended that everyone live within the existing budget and they did not feel that the Board was responsive to the needs of the industry which they felt is already over regulated.

RESPONSE: The Board acknowledged the comments and responds that the Board has both a legal and a fiduciary obligation to set fees commensurate with costs. The Board appropriation is based on what has been expended in a "base year" and any additional appropriation assigned as a result of legislative changes. The appropriation is the "authority" to spend funds. The revenue needed to cover the appropriation comes strictly

from Board fees. The last time license fees were increased was in 1995. In the past the Board operated below appropriation levels and fees were commensurate with costs. However, the Board office is now fully staffed and in the field for the first time in years which is an additional cost. A new database had to be developed to meet legislative and informational requests at additional cost. There is a decline in the number of license renewals and in 1999 fees pertaining to operation plan amendments, inspections and land use forms were dropped creating a loss of revenue. The board has assigned a committee to review the budget to determine if there is any room to cut expenditures in the future. The legislature is responsible for the laws pertaining to regulating the industry and the Board is responsible for making rules to implement the laws.

BOARD OF OUTFITTERS RAYMOND RUGG, CHAIRMAN

By: /s/ Annie M. Bartos
ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

By: <u>/s/ Annie M. Bartos</u>
ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER

Certified to the Secretary of State, May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE DIVISION DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment)	NOTICE	OF	AMENDMENT
of ARM 8.94.3806 pertaining)			
to the submission and review)			
of applications under the)			
2000-2001 Treasure State)			
Endowment Program (TSEP))			

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On April 5, 2001, the Local Government Assistance Division published a notice of the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule at page 516, 2001 Montana Administrative Register, issue number 7. The hearing was held on April 26, 2001.
- 2. The Division has amended ARM 8.94.3806 exactly as proposed, but, in response to the comment noted in paragraph three, has slightly modified its guidelines for applying for matching grants for preliminary engineering work.
- 3. The Division has received one comment. The comment received and the Division's response are as follows:

COMMENT NO. 1: The department has proposed guidelines for preliminary engineering grants that would require completed PER's to follow the format and meet the requirements of the Uniform Preliminary Engineering Analysis for Montana Public Facility Projects outline. The Uniform outline should be used not as a strict format, but, rather as a laundry list. The phrase "follows the format" should be stricken from the language.

RESPONSE: The department agrees in principle with this comment. The department does not intend the Uniform outline be strictly adhered to. However, rather than striking the language identified by the comment, the department has modified the material in question to read as follows: a completed PER will be required to be submitted to the department, which follows the format and meets the requirements of the Uniform Preliminary Engineering Analysis for Montana Public Facility Projects outline. While the department wants the PER to follow the basic structure of the outline, we understand that sound professional practice may require the engineer to deviate from the outline at the more detailed levels of the report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE DIVISION

By: /s/ Annie M. Bartos
ANNIE M. BARTOS, CHIEF COUNSEL
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

By: <u>/s/ Annie M. Bartos</u>
ANNIE M. BARTOS, RULE REVIEWER

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2001.

BEFORE THE FISH, WILDLIFE AND PARKS COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the)	
adoption of a new rule)	
and amendment of ARM)	
12.11.3601, creating a)	NOTICE OF ADOPTION
no wake zone at Hell)	AND AMENDMENT
Creek Marina on Fort)	
Peck Reservoir and ARM)	
12.11.501, updating the)	
index rule)	

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On March 22, 2001, the Fish, Wildlife and Parks Commission (commission) published notice of the proposed adoption of new rule I (12.11.2401) and the proposed amendment of ARM 12.11.3601, creating a no wake zone at Hell Creek Marina on Fort Peck Reservoir and ARM 12.11.501, listing the new rule in the list of bodies of water which provides an index to recreational water use rules at page 432 of the 2001 Montana Administrative Register, Issue Number 6.
- 2. The commission has adopted ARM 12.11.2401 exactly as proposed.
- 3. The commission has amended ARM 12.11.3601 and 12.11.501 exactly as proposed.
 - No comments or testimony were received.

BY:

/s/ Rich Lane Rich Lane, Chairman Fish, Wildlife and Parks Commission

/s/ Rebecca Dockter Engstrom
REBECCA DOCKTER ENGSTROM
Rule Reviewer

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2001

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

In the matter of the amendment) of ARM 17.50.801, 17.50.802, 17.50.806, 17.50.809 and NOTICE OF THE AMENDMENT, 17.50.810, the adoption of NEW) ADOPTION, AND REPEAL OF RULES I-IX, and the repeal of) RULES ARM 17.50.805, 17.50.807 and 17.50.808, pertaining to licensing, waste disposal, recordkeeping, and inspection) for businesses pumping wastes) (Solid Waste) from septic tank systems, privies, car wash sumps, and grease traps, and other similar wastes

TO: All Concerned Persons

- 1. On December 7, 2000, the Department of Environmental Quality published notice of a public hearing on the proposed amendment, adoption and repeal of the above-captioned rules pertaining to licensing of cesspool, septic tank, and privy cleaners, and the disposal of wastes from septic tanks, privies, grease traps, car wash sumps, and other similar wastes, at page 3299, 2000 Montana Administrative Register, issue number 23.
- 2. The Department has repealed ARM 17.50.805, 17.50.807, and 17.50.808, as proposed.
- 3. The Department has amended ARM 17.50.801, 17.50.802, 17.50.806, 17.50.809, and 17.50.810 as proposed, with the following changes. Matter to be added is underlined. Matter to be deleted is interlined.
- 17.50.801 PURPOSE (1) The purpose of this subchapter is to provide standards for the licensure of cesspool, septic tank and privy cleaning businesses and to establish uniform requirements for the disposal of septage, grease trap waste, privy waste, car wash sump waste, and other similar wastes. These similar wastes include, but are not limited to, other primarily liquid wastes such as food processing wastes, septic tank pumpings that contain commercial and industrial wastewater, and snow melt sump wastewater, that can be applied to the land for a beneficial purpose. Regulated hazardous wastes are not covered under this rule. Rules on the management of hazardous wastes are found in ARM Title 17, chapter 53.
 - (2) and (3) remain the same as proposed.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-1202, MCA

17.50.802 DEFINITIONS In addition to the definitions in 75-10-1202, MCA, the following definitions apply in this subchapter:

- (1) through (6) remain the same as proposed.
- (7) "Car wash sump" means an interceptor or settling device, designed to be emptied by mechanical means, located below the normal grade of a wastewater gravity system used to precipitate mud from wastewater at a car wash, garage, or vehicle maintenance facility before the water enters an oil/water interceptor, a sanitary sewer or individual wastewater treatment system. Oil/water interceptors are not car wash sumps.
 - (8) through (17) remain the same as proposed.
- (18) "Gray water" means any wastewater other than toilet wastes or industrial chemicals, and includes, but is not limited to, shower and bath wastewater, kitchen wastewater, and laundry wastewater. It may not contain listed hazardous wastes or hazardous substances above regulatory thresholds.
 - (19) through (24) remain the same as proposed.
- (25) "Pathogen" means a disease-causing organism. This includes, but is not limited to, certain bacteria, protozoa, viruses, and viable helminth ova.
- (25) through (27) remain the same as proposed, but are renumbered (26) through (28).
- (28)(29) "Pumpings" means the materials, liquid and solid, removed from a cesspool, septic tank, privy, portable toilet, grease trap, or car wash (or similar) sump that may be land applied for a beneficial purpose. The term also includes other primarily liquid wastes that may be land applied for a beneficial purpose. These include, but are not limited to, wastes from food processing operations, septage that contains commercial and industrial wastewater, and wastes from snow melt wastewater sumps. The term does not include commercial or industrial wastes that contain listed hazardous wastes or hazardous substances above regulatory thresholds.
- (29) through (35) remain the same as proposed, but are renumbered (30) through (36).
- (37) "Vector attraction" means the characteristic of sewage sludge and other pumpings that attracts rodents, flies, mosquitoes, or other organisms capable of transporting infectious agents.
 - (36) remains the same as proposed, but is renumbered (38).

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-1202, MCA

- 17.50.806 PROCESSING OF LICENSE APPLICATIONS (1) through (3) remain the same as proposed.
- (4) Within five days after receiving a completed application for a license, the department shall notify the local health officer or designated representative of each county in which the applicant proposes to do business. To allow the local health officer or designated representative an opportunity to review and comment on an application, the department may not issue a license until five 14 days after notifying the local health officer or designated representative.
 - (5) remains the same as proposed.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA

IMP: 75-10-1202, 75-10-1210, 75-10-1212, 75-10-1221, MCA

17.50.809 SPECIFIC LAND APPLICATION SITE CRITERIA (1) remains the same as proposed.

- (2) A person may not apply pumpings to land within 150 feet of any state surface water, including <u>ephemeral or</u> intermittent drainages and wetlands. The department or local health officer or the health officer's designated representative may require greater distances where slopes or other factors may increase the likelihood of runoff from the land application area.
 - (3) remains the same as proposed.
- (4) A person may not apply pumpings to land within 100 feet of a drinking water supply source. The department or local health officer or the health officer's representative may require greater distance where site conditions might increase the likelihood of contamination of a drinking water source.
- (5) Topographical slopes on cultivated fields must be taken into account when a person is selecting land application areas. A person may not apply pumpings where ponding or runoff of septage is likely to occur.
 - (6) and (7) remain the same as proposed.
- (8) Bulk septage Pumpings may be applied to the land surface only where at least six feet separate the land surface from seasonally high ground water. The department or local health officer or the health officer's designated representative may require greater separation where soil types or specific application processes might increase the likelihood of ground water contamination.
 - (9) remains the same as proposed.
- (10) A pumper shall control litter at land application sites as necessary to prevent its spread to adjoining properties. <u>Litter must be removed from a land application site</u> within six hours after application.
- (11) A person may not apply bulk septage or other pumpings to agricultural land, forest land, pasture land, or range land at a rate greater than the agronomic rate of the site for nitrogen on an annual basis.
- (12) The annual application rate (AAR) for bulk septage, in gallons/acre/year, is determined by the formula AAR=N/0.0026, where N equals the amount of nitrogen, in pounds per acre per 365-day period, needed by the crop or vegetation grown on the land.
 - (13) and (14) remain the same as proposed.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-1202, MCA

- 17.50.810 SPECIAL CONDITIONS; SEASONAL OPERATIONS (1) A person may not apply pumpings to flooded, frozen, or snow covered ground if the pumpings will may enter state waters.
- (2) A person may not apply routine maintenance pumpings to frozen or snow covered ground, unless the tank from which the

waste comes requires pumping more frequently than every six months and no waste water treatment plant that will take the waste is available within 25 miles of the point of generation.

- (3) (2) A person may apply routine maintenance pumpings or emergency pumpings, including but not limited to, pumpings required due to septic system freeze-ups, overflows, flooding, or failures, to frozen or snow covered ground, only if no other reasonable treatment method is available. Reasonable treatment method options include hauling the waste to a waste water treatment plant or a septage storage, treatment, or dewatering facility that will accept the waste and that is within 25 miles of the point of generation.
- (4) (3) Subject to the restrictions in (1) through (3) and (2) of this rule and the requirements of ARM 17.50.809(1), (3) and (4), a person may apply pumpings to frozen or snow covered ground only if:
- (a) sites or fields used have a slope of less than or equal to 2 3 percent;
- (b) waste is applied at a rate of less than 10,000 gallons per acre;
- (c) application occurs more than 500 feet from any surface water or wetland;
 - (d) remains the same as proposed, but is renumbered (b).
- (e) (c) bulk septage, and wastes subject to ARM 17.50.816, have undergone treatment by the vector reduction technique specified in ARM 17.50.811(3)(c) or, if not alkali stabilized, are incorporated into the soil as soon as the weather permits. Grease trap wastes must be incorporated into the soil as soon as the weather permits. Alkali stabilization of septage and wastes subject to ARM 17.50.816 is required unless the owner or the owner's authorized representative is unwilling to accept pHstabilized wastes. If the wastes are not alkali stabilized, the pumper shall keep a the signed written statement of objection to the alkali-stabilization from the owner orauthorized representative on file in conformance with ARM 17.50.813. Site restrictions found in ARM 17.50.811(4) and (5) start from the time of alkali stabilization or the date of incorporation, if not alkali-stabilized.
- (5) through (9) remain the same as proposed, but are renumbered (4) through (8).
- (10) (9) The department may, in individual cases, place more or less restrictive criteria on septage treatment processes and individual land application and disposal sites, taking into account proximity to population centers, volume of septage or other pumpings, soil types, protection of human health and the environment, and the avoidance of public nuisances.
- (10) Mixed loads of different types of pumpings must be handled with all appropriate restrictions applicable to the individual components.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-1202, MCA

4. The Department has adopted NEW RULES III (17.50.812),

VI (17.50.815) and IX (17.50.820), as proposed.

5. The Department has adopted NEW RULES I (17.50.803), II (17.50.811), IV (17.50.813), V (17.50.814), VII (17.50.816), and VIII (17.50.819), as proposed, with the following changes. Matter to be added is underlined. Matter to be deleted is interlined.

NEW RULE I (17.50.803) LICENSURE; LICENSE APPLICATION; ANNUAL RENEWAL (1) through (1)(d) remain the same as proposed.

- (e) the estimated volume of septage <u>and other wastes</u> to be disposed of at each disposal site annually.
 - (2) through (2)(c) remain the same as proposed.
- (d) the type of vegetation on the land application area (i.e., fallow land, pasture, range, forest) and the nitrogen requirements for the vegetation;
 - (e) through (g) remain the same as proposed.
- (h) the distance to surface water and <u>ephemeral or</u> intermittent drainages;
 - (i) through (l) remain the same as proposed.
- (m) a proposed disposal operation and maintenance plan for each land application site including provisions for access control, if necessary, and the types and sources of wastes to be managed on the site;
 - (n) and (o) remain the same as proposed.
 - (3) remains the same as proposed.
- (4) An applicant shall pay the license or renewal fee required under 75-10-1212, MCA, to the department at the time the applicant submits the license or renewal application to the department. A license may not be issued or renewed prior to payment of the appropriate fee.
 - (5) through (7) remain the same as proposed.
- (8) A person may not who renews a license after April 1 of the year after the license expires shall pay the late fee required under 75-10-1212, MCA.
- (9) A person may not renew a license after December 31 of the year after the license expires. A person desiring to operate a business, or dispose of wastes, regulated under this subchapter after December 31 of the year after the license expires shall submit a new application, along with the application fee, to the department.
- (10) A person who operates a business, or disposes of wastes, regulated under this subchapter after the person's license has expired and prior to renewing the person's license and paying the required fees is subject to the enforcement provisions of 75-10-1220, 75-10-1221, 75-10-1222, and 75-10-1223, MCA.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA

IMP: 75-10-1202, 75-10-1211, 75-10-1212, MCA

NEW RULE II (17.50.811) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR LAND APPLICATION OR INCORPORATION OF SEPTAGE

(1) A person may not apply bulk septage, to public contact

sites or home lawns or gardens.

- (2) bulk Bulk materials derived from septage, or septage or materials derived from septage sold or given away in a bag or other container, may not be applied to public contact sites or home lawns or gardens unless the materials to be applied satisfy the pollutant concentration requirements in 40 CFR 503.13(b)(3), the Class A pathogen requirements in 40 CFR 503.32(a), and at least one of the vector attraction reduction requirements in 40 CFR 503.33(b)(1) through (b)(8).
- (2) (3) A person may apply bulk septage, bulk materials derived from septage not meeting the requirements of (2) of this rule, or septage or materials derived from septage sold or given away in a bag or other container not meeting the requirements of (1) (2) of this rule only to agricultural land, forest land, or reclamation sites, and only if the person first performs one of the following vector attraction and pathogen reduction methods:
 - (a) through (d) remain the same as proposed.
- (3) (4) A person may not apply bulk septage, bulk materials derived from septage not meeting the requirements of (2) of this rule, or septage or materials derived from septage sold or given away in a bag or other container that do not meet the requirements of (1) (2) of this rule unless only if the use of the site is restricted so that:
 - (a) through (d) remain the same as proposed.
- (4) (5) The following additional restrictions apply if bulk septage, bulk materials derived from septage not meeting the requirements of (2) of this rule, or septage or materials derived from septage sold or given away in a bag or other container that do not meet the requirements of (1) (2) of this rule are applied to land and have not been treated with alkali as in (2) (3)(c) of this rule:
 - (a) through (d) remain the same as proposed.
- (5) through (7) remain the same as proposed, but are renumbered (6) through (8).

AUTH: 75-10-204, 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-204, 75-10-1202, MCA

NEW RULE IV (17.50.813) RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS

- (1) remains the same as proposed.
- (2) Licensees shall retain disposal and land application records for at least five years.
 - (3) remains the same as proposed.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-1202, MCA

NEW RULE V (17.50.814) CAR WASH SUMPS AND OTHER SUMP WASTES (1) through (3) remain the same as proposed.

- (4) Waste from an automated automatic car wash bay sump may be used as clean fill or, if dewatered, as cover at landfills.
 - (5) through (12) remain the same as proposed.
 - (13) A pumper shall retain all testing results for at least

five years and make them available to the department upon request.

(14) Operators of facilities receiving sump waste may, before accepting waste, require a pumper to perform additional testing.

AUTH: 75-10-204, 75-10-1202, MCA

IMP: 75-10-112, 75-10-204, 75-10-1202, MCA

NEW RULE VII (17.50.816) PRIVY WASTE; PIT TOILET WASTE; PORTABLE TOILET WASTE; VESSEL PUMPOUT FACILITY WASTE; AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLE DUMP STATION WASTE (1) and (2) remain the same as proposed.

- (3) A person may not place privy wastes, pit toilet waste, portable toilet waste, marine vessel pumpout facility waste or recreational vehicle wastes in a wastewater treatment system with a cesspool.
- (4) A person may not place privy wastes, pit toilet waste, portable toilet waste, marine vessel pumpout facility waste or recreational vehicle wastes in a wastewater treatment system with a septic tank, unless the septic tank and connected liquid treatment system was designed for this purpose by a professional engineer licensed to do business practice engineering in Montana.
- (5) No person may land-apply privy wastes, pit toilet waste, portable toilet waste, marine vessel pumpout facility waste or recreational vehicle wastes unless the following conditions are met:
 - (a) and (b) remain the same as proposed.
- (c) the wastes are screened or sorted before or application, during application, or within six hours after application and before incorporation into the soil to remove large non-putrescible wastes. The non-putrescible wastes must be disposed of in a Class II solid waste management facility licensed in accordance with 75-10-221, MCA.
- (6) The maximum annual application rate (AAR) for these wastes, in gallons/acre/year, is determined by the formula AAR=N/0.0052, where N equals the amount of nitrogen in pounds per acre per 365-day period needed by the crop or other vegetation grown on the land.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-1202, MCA

NEW RULE VIII (17.50.819) INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE AND AVAILABILITY OF REFERENCED DOCUMENTS (1) The department hereby adopts and incorporates by reference:

- (a) and (b) remain the same as proposed.
- (c) 40 CFR 503.13(b)(3), which sets forth pollutant concentration requirements, 40 CFR 503.32(a), which sets forth Class A pathogen reduction requirements, and 40 CFR 503.33(b)(1) through (b)(8), which set forth vector attraction reduction requirements.
 - (2) and (3) remain the same as proposed.

AUTH: 75-10-1202, MCA IMP: 75-10-1202, MCA

6. The following comments were received, and appear with the Department's responses:

COMMENT 1: The Department received comments from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) requesting clarification of the nature of the wastes to be managed under the proposed rules. The EPA was concerned that only wastes with a possible beneficial use be applied to the land.

RESPONSE: The Department agrees and has added language to ARM 17.50.801(1) for clarification.

COMMENT 2: The Department received comments from the EPA on definitions found in ARM 17.50.802, specifically: (6) "Bulk Septage," (7) "Car wash sump," (18) "Gray water," and (28) "Pumpings." The EPA suggested that the definitions specifically exclude regulated hazardous wastes, a clarification of what wastes are included in the definitions, and the inclusion of the word "domestic" to the phrase "bulk septage." The EPA also requested the addition of definitions related to pathogen reduction and vector attraction. A similar comment on (7) "Car wash sump" was received from the City/County Health Department (CCHD) of Missoula.

<u>RESPONSE:</u> The Department has made the changes where suggested, except for (6) "Bulk septage." Septage is, by statute, derived from domestic sewage and the addition of the word "domestic" to the phrase defined would be superfluous.

COMMENT 3: The Department received a comment from the CCHD of Missoula that the five-day comment period allowed health officers in ARM 17.50.806(4) is insufficient and that 14 days is more appropriate.

RESPONSE: The Department agrees with the comment and has made the suggested revisions.

COMMENT 4: The EPA made clarification comments on the need to protect surface and drinking water in ARM 17.50.809 through the specific inclusion of reference to ephemeral drainages and the right to restrict land application distances in special cases near drinking water sources. The EPA also suggested the Department clarify the definition of land application rate as gallons/acre/year.

RESPONSE: The Department agrees with the comments and has made the suggested revisions.

COMMENT 5: One comment asked why there were different slope limits for surface application (6%) and injection (12%) in ARM 17.50.809(6) and (7).

RESPONSE: These limits were taken from EPA guidance and are based on the threat to surface water from different management practices. No change has been made to this portion of the proposed rule.

COMMENT 6: The Department received a comment requesting that the separation distance to seasonally high groundwater in ARM 17.50.809(8) be increased to ten feet.

RESPONSE: The required six-foot separation is greater than the four-foot separation distance required by Department rules for the design of on-site wastewater system leach fields. The six-foot distance is being carried over from the previous rule and the Department has no evidence of adverse effects from this separation distance. Therefore, no change was made to this part of the proposed rule.

COMMENT 7: Two comments were received with regard to ARM 17.50.809(10). The EPA commented that litter in land-applied pumpings should be pre-screened and only liquid and semi-liquid wastes be land-applied. A member of the pumper community commented that since screens are so hard to maintain given the variety of materials involved, some time should be allowed between the application of liquid wastes and litter pickup.

RESPONSE: The Department recognizes that inadvertent litter may occur during the application of these wastes and that the application site should be given time to dry out somewhat for litter control activities. The proposed rule was changed to require the collection of litter within six hours after application, which is the time limit allowed prior to incorporation for non-alkali treated wastes. This issue is also addressed in ARM 17.50.816(5)(c), which was modified in a similar manner.

COMMENT 8: The EPA commented that ARM 17.50.810(1), concerning the application of pumpings to flooded, frozen or snow covered ground, would better protect state waters if the word "may" were substituted for the word "will."

RESPONSE: The Department agrees with the comment and has
made the suggested revisions.

COMMENT 9: Two comments were received on ARM 17.50.810(2), concerning application of pumpings to frozen or snow covered ground. The comment from the EPA suggested the Department delete this paragraph because it gave no incentive to increase holding capacity. A comment from the pumping community suggested the replacement of the word "and" with "or" thus allowing unlimited winter application of routine pumpings if no wastewater treatment plant was available for disposal. A question was also posed as to when the time started for conformance with the site restrictions in ARM 17.50.811.

RESPONSE: The Department has decided to combine ARM 17.50.810(2) with (3) to encourage pumpers to make arrangements for winter disposal at waste water treatment plants rather than pose a threat to surface waters in the event of a sudden thaw or during spring run-off. The change will discourage and limit the application of routine pumpings to frozen ground and thus protect Montana waters. It will also allow for the pumping of remote facilities that cannot afford to have large storage

capacity, yet have significant liquid volumes in the wintertime, such as snow melt at highway maintenance facilities. These changes more closely reflect EPA guidance for application to snow covered and frozen ground. The revised rule also includes a starting point for the site restrictions found in ARM 17.50.811(4) and (5). Site restrictions commence on the date of land application for alkali-stabilized material or the date of incorporation for non-stabilized material.

COMMENT 10: The EPA suggested that the requirements of ARM 17.50.809(1), (3), and (4), concerning required distances between application sites and buildings, surface water, and highways, be included in ARM 17.50.810(4) for clarification.

<u>RESPONSE:</u> The Department agrees with the comment and has made the suggested revisions.

<u>COMMENT 11:</u> The EPA commented that additional requirements from 40 CFR Part 257 should be included if non-septage wastes are allowed at land application sites.

<u>RESPONSE:</u> This appears to be beyond the scope of the current rulemaking and will be addressed in a proposed amendment at a later date.

COMMENT 12: One comment was received questioning the need for the 500-foot separation between application sites and surface water during winter and the 10,000 gallon limitation on winter operations found in ARM 17.50.810(4).

RESPONSE: The Department agrees that the proposed separation distance and gallon limitations would be more restrictive than EPA guidance on the application of materials to frozen or snow-covered ground and the Department has deleted these restrictions from the rule. The separation distances from application sites to surface water in ARM 17.50.809(2), which carry-over from the previous rule, and application rates found in ARM 17.50.809(12), which are the same as EPA application rates for septage, will apply.

COMMENT 13: One comment asked why ARM 17.50.810(10), which gives the Department flexibility to deviate from the treatment and land application requirements on a case-by-case basis, referred only to septage when it appeared to apply to other pumpings given the context.

RESPONSE: The Department agrees with the comment and has made the suggested revision to include other pumpings.

COMMENT 14: One comment was made concerning what the Department intended to do with mixed loads of pumpings since 40 CFR Part 503 applies only to domestic septage and not mixed loads of other wastes.

RESPONSE: The Department believes that mixed loads should be handled with all appropriate restrictions applicable to the individual components. Although implicit in the rules, this has been clarified by the addition of a new subsection (10) in ARM 17.50.810. The Department's authority in §75-10-1202, MCA, is

broader than the EPA's authority in 40 CFR Part 503 and covers additional wastes such as grease trap waste and commercial septage.

<u>COMMENT 15:</u> The EPA made several comments on ARM 17.50.803, suggesting clarification of information that must be provided to the Department in an application. Crop nitrogen requirements and the types and sources of wastes managed on the land application site were specifically requested for inclusion.

<u>RESPONSE:</u> The Department agrees and has made changes to the rule to require that the appropriate information is provided.

COMMENT 16: The Department received a comment on the license renewal process and timing. Of particular concern was the need for the rule to clarify deadlines for license renewal.

RESPONSE: ARM 17.50.803 has been modified to reflect the requirements of §75-10-1202, MCA, and comments made during the legislative process. The rule states that the late fee of \$125 will be charged for renewals made after April 1 of the year after the license expires, that fees must be paid at the time of application for a license or renewal, and that the license may not be renewed after December 31 of the year after the license expired. Finally, an operator is subject to enforcement actions if the operator operates before renewing the license and paying the fees.

COMMENT 17: The EPA provided several technical comments on the conformance of ARM 17.50.811 with the requirements of septage management found in 40 CFR Part 503. Of particular concern was the wording of subsection (1), which appeared to allow land application of septage to public contact sites and home lawns and gardens.

RESPONSE: The Department agrees with these comments and modified the proposed rule for clarification. Bulk septage may not be applied to public contact sites and home lawns and gardens. Materials derived from septage, such as compost, may be applied only if treated to EPA standards for sewage sludge.

COMMENT 18: One comment was received indicating the phrase "automated car wash bay" should be replaced with "automatic car wash bay" in ARM 17.50.814(2) for consistency with the definition in ARM 17.50.802(5) of "automatic car wash bay."

RESPONSE: The Department agrees with the comment and has made the suggested revision.

COMMENT 19: Two comments were received that the phrase "at least five years" in NEW RULE IV [ARM 17.50.813(2)], concerning the length of time records must be kept, and 17.50.814(13), concerning the length of time testing results must be retained, is more stringent than "5 years" in federal regulations.

<u>RESPONSE:</u> The Department agrees with the comment and has changed the required period to "five years" to be no more stringent than EPA's regulations.

<u>COMMENT 20:</u> The Department received four comments on ARM

17.50.814 that concerned the contaminant levels found in car wash sumps. They stated that the proposed rule was too lenient. These comments requested that all car wash sump waste be banned for use as clean fill and that all car wash sumps be tested by quantitative methods for heavy metals and other possible contaminants.

The Department did not make the requested RESPONSE: The Department believes that the tiered approach revisions. (visual inspection followed by testing if indicated) taken in the rule is protective of the environment while allowing a costeffective approach to managing these wastes. This approach was developed with input from car wash operators and is similar to other adjoining states' requirements. The request to ban the land application of all car wash sump wastes is outside the scope of the rulemaking, but may be addressed in a separate rulemaking at a later date, should evidence so warrant. Department believes that this tiered approach does require appropriate handling of petroleum-contaminated wastes provides adequate requirements for screening for regulated hazardous wastes.

<u>COMMENT 21:</u> The Department received two comments requesting the ability to place car wash sump wastes and bulk liquid grease trap wastes into Class II landfill units.

<u>RESPONSE:</u> This practice is prohibited by ARM 17.50.511(1)(m) and 40 CFR § 258.28 (2000 edition). Waste must be dewatered prior to placement in a landfill unit. If the EPA removes the prohibition on bulk liquids at landfills, then the Department will consider changing both the landfill and septic pumper rules.

COMMENT 22: The Department received two comments on proposed ARM 17.50.814(2) suggesting that the ban on the use of rental equipment to pump sumps be extended to the pumping of septic tanks also.

RESPONSE: The use of rental equipment to pump septic tanks is banned under §75-10-1210(2)(a), MCA, unless the person doing the pumping is licensed by the department.

<u>COMMENT 23:</u> Two comments were received concerning the requirement that only the pumpers may be required to perform additional testing under ARM 17.50.814(14). Members of the pumping community were concerned that they may face unknown testing charges imposed by landfills that could not be passed along to the waste generators.

<u>RESPONSE:</u> The Department agrees and has revised the rule to allow for other persons to perform the testing. Facilities receiving waste may require additional testing as a condition of receiving waste, but this testing may be done by the waste generator, the pumper, or the facility.

COMMENT 24: The Department received a comment that it would be appropriate in ARM 17.50.815(7)(c) to require that grease trap wastes be treated with the addition of alkali.

RESPONSE: The Department is concerned that the addition of alkali to grease trap waste would only result in the formation of a crude soap which would be more difficult to biodegrade. In addition, the subsurface injection or soil incorporation of grease trap waste allows for ready biodegradation by soil organisms and provides the proper degree of vector attraction reduction. Leaving alkali-treated material on the soil surface might result in greater threats to surface waters. Therefore, no change is being made.

COMMENT 25: A comment was received that ARM 17.50.816(4), which prohibits the placement of privy waste, pit toilet waste, portable toilet waste, vessel pumpout facility waste and recreational vehicle waste into wastewater treatment systems with a septic tank unless the system was designed by a professional engineer, would preclude the use of older septic tank and treatment systems that have not been engineered.

RESPONSE: This is correct. Systems that are not properly designed should not receive these high-strength wastes and the chemicals associated with them. Therefore, no change was made to the proposed rule.

COMMENT 26: Two comments were received on the difficulty of screening and sorting liquid wastes from pit toilets, privies and cesspools as required in ARM 17.50.816(5)(c).

<u>RESPONSE:</u> The rule has been clarified to require the removal of non-putrescible waste within six hours after land application.

COMMENT 27: The Department received three comments on the land application rate in ARM 17.50.816(6) for privy waste, pit toilet waste, portable toilet waste, vessel pumpout facility waste and recreational vehicle waste. The proposed land application rate is one-half that allowed by the EPA for all septage, which includes wastes from portable toilets, cesspools, privies, and type III marine sanitation devices. The commentors requested that the Department use the EPA rate for septage.

RESPONSE: Department research indicates that the wastes to be regulated under ARM 17.50.816 are significantly different from septage in that they have had no primary treatment and are often significantly stronger wastes with significantly higher biological oxygen demand. These wastes also routinely contain disinfectants and deodorants which can inhibit biological degradation or provide additional nitrogen. This would result in greater potential impact on the environment.

In 1992, the EPA set the application rate for septage based on 9 samples from septic tank pumpers dumping at the Madison, Wisconsin Wastewater Treatment Plant. These samples were analyzed for ammonia, Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN) and a wide variety of other possible pollutants. The TKN used to develop the application rate was the 95th percentile concentration developed from the sampling (i.e., 352 mg/l). See U.S. EPA, "Justification for the Annual Application Rate for Domestic

Septage in the Standards for the Use or Disposal of Sewage Sludge," Appendix K, in Technical Support Document for the Land Application of Sewage Sludge (1992). At the time, this was thought to be a conservative value because, it was believed, 95 percent of septage would have a lower TKN value. More recent EPA publications, however, list the average TKN of septage as 588 mg/l, with a biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) of 6,480 mg/l. U.S. EPA, Guide to Septage Treatment and Disposal, EPA/625/R-94/002 (1994).

Recent data from the Washington State Department of Ecology states that septage from Whidbey Island has a mean value of 917 mg/l total nitrogen with a BOD of 5,400 mg/l. Washington State Department of Ecology, "Septage Management," in Biosolids Management Guidelines for Washington State, Publication #93-80 (Revised July, 2000). The average BOD of portable toilet wastes is 15,166 mg/l. M.R. Burrows, Treating Holding Tank Waste, (internal company paper for the Thetford Corporation, Ann Arbor, MI) (1995). Although TKN values are not given by Burrows, an analysis of the BOD/TKN relationships based on values presented by the EPA and Washington Department of Ecology indicates that the TKN of wastes with this BOD should be around 1,080 mg/l. This is about three times the design value used by the EPA in developing the septage land application rate and twice the 1994 EPA average septage value. Thus, limiting land application of wastes from privies, pit toilets, portable toilets, vessel pumpout facilities, and recreational vehicle dump stations to one-half the EPA rate for septage is justified.

In addition to the higher nitrogen concentrations in these wastes, they often contain disinfectants and deodorants. The most commonly used are enzyme-based or formaldehyde-based. Some deodorants/disinfectants are nitrogen-bearing compounds, e.g., quaternary ammonium chloride. These compounds are not readily biodegradable and contribute additional nitrogen loading to the land application site. The Department considered the potential impacts of greater nitrogen content and lowered the application rate accordingly in the proposed rule.

Because the Department is adopting a standard that is more stringent than a comparable federal regulation, it has complied with §75-10-107, MCA. This analysis is contained in a memorandum as part of the rulemaking record, and follows.

HB 521 ANALYSIS: §75-10-107, MCA, states, in part:

- (2) The department may adopt a rule to implement this chapter that is more stringent than comparable federal regulations or guidelines only if the department makes a written finding after a public hearing and public comment and based on evidence in the record that:
- (a) the proposed state standard or requirement protects public health or the environment of the

state; and

- (b) the state standard or requirement to be imposed can mitigate harm to the public health or environment and is achievable under current technology.
- (3) The written finding must reference information and peer-reviewed scientific studies contained in the record that forms the basis for the department's conclusion. The written finding must also include information from the hearing record regarding the costs to the regulated community that are directly attributable to the proposed state standard or requirement.

<u>Department's Analysis in Response to the Requirements of §75-10-107, MCA:</u>

§75-10-107(2)(a), MCA: The standard adopted, a halving of the application rate for much more concentrated wastes, better protects the ground waters of the state by reducing the likelihood that groundwater will be contaminated by nitrogen. Because the wastes from privies, pit toilets, portable toilets, vessel pumpout facilities, and recreational vehicle dump stations have a higher concentration of nitrogen, application at the rate allowed for septage might cause more nitrogen to be deposited on the land than the plants growing there can use. Nitrogen might therefore remain on and in the ground. Precipitation might then cause it to percolate down and contaminate ground water. By allowing the waste to be applied at half the rate allowed for septage, less nitrogen would be applied, the plants would be able to use up all of the nitrogen, and less nitrogen would reach the ground water.

§75-10-107(2)(b), MCA: The standard being imposed can mitigate harm to groundwater by only allowing the application of wastes at the agronomic uptake rate and is achievable under current technology. No technological changes are proposed to the current practice of land application as required by EPA regulations, only a change to the application rate.

§75-10-107(3), MCA: There are no known peer-reviewed studies on this issue. The information used was derived from EPA documents, studies by the Washington State Department of Ecology, and private industry information. There is no information available on the cost to land-apply septage. The Department does not believe that there will be a significant additional cost based on the standard for land-applying privy, pit toilet, portable toilet, and similar waste. The Department's experience and knowledge indicate that most land application sites are of sufficient size that the maximum allowable application is not attained. Rather, the availability of sites is limited not by areas that are over-nitrogenated, but by the need to use areas that are not muddy.

Copies of the references cited above have been placed in the rulemaking record and are available for public review at the Department of Environmental Quality, Waste Management Section, Community Services Bureau, 1520 E. 6th Avenue, Helena Montana.

The Department also amended ARM 17.50.816 by adding the word "vessel" before "pumpout facility" in sections (3), (4), and (5) to conform to the language in the rule title and sections (1) and (2).

7. The Department has also made minor editorial changes that are not intended to change the meaning of the proposed rules.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

by:		Jai	n P.	Sensik	paugh	
_	JAN	P. :	SENS	IBAUGH,	Director	

Reviewed by:

<u>David Rusoff</u>
David Rusoff, Rule Reviewer

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2001.

NOTICE OF FUNCTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE RULE REVIEW COMMITTEE

Interim Committees and the Environmental Quality Council

Administrative rule review is a function of interim committees and the Environmental Quality Council (EQC). These interim committees and the EQC have administrative rule review, program evaluation, and monitoring functions for the following executive branch agencies and the entities attached to agencies for administrative purposes.

Economic Affairs Interim Committee:

- ▶ Department of Agriculture;
- ▶ Department of Commerce;
- Department of Labor and Industry;
- Department of Livestock;
- ▶ Department of Public Service Regulation; and
- ▶ Office of the State Auditor and Insurance Commissioner.

Education and Local Government Interim Committee:

- State Board of Education;
- ▶ Board of Public Education;
- ▶ Board of Regents of Higher Education; and
- ▶ Office of Public Instruction.

Children, Families, Health, and Human Services Interim
Committee:

▶ Department of Public Health and Human Services.

Law and Justice Interim Committee:

- ▶ Department of Corrections; and
- ▶ Department of Justice.

Revenue and Transportation Interim Committee:

- ▶ Department of Revenue; and
- ▶ Department of Transportation.

State Administration, and Veterans' Affairs Interim Committee:

- ▶ Department of Administration;
- ▶ Department of Military Affairs; and
- ▶ Office of the Secretary of State.

Environmental Quality Council:

- ▶ Department of Environmental Quality;
- ▶ Department of Fish, Wildlife, and Parks; and
- ▶ Department of Natural Resources and Conservation.

These interim committees and the EQC have the authority to make recommendations to an agency regarding the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule or to request that the agency prepare a statement of the estimated economic impact of a proposal. They also may poll the members of the Legislature to determine if a proposed rule is consistent with the intent of the Legislature or, during a legislative session, introduce a bill repealing a rule, or directing an agency to adopt or amend a rule, or a Joint Resolution recommending that an agency adopt, amend, or repeal a rule.

The interim committees and the EQC welcome comments and invite members of the public to appear before them or to send written statements in order to bring to their attention any difficulties with the existing or proposed rules. The mailing address is PO Box 201706, Helena, MT 59620-1706.

HOW TO USE THE ADMINISTRATIVE RULES OF MONTANA AND THE MONTANA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER

Definitions:

Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) is a looseleaf compilation by department of all rules of state departments and attached boards presently in effect, except rules adopted up to three months previously.

Montana Administrative Register (MAR) is a soft back, bound publication, issued twice-monthly, containing notices of rules proposed by agencies, notices of rules adopted by agencies, and interpretations of statutes and rules by the attorney general (Attorney General's Opinions) and agencies (Declaratory Rulings) issued since publication of the preceding register.

Use of the Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM):

Known Subject

Consult ARM topical index.
 Update the rule by checking the accumulative Matter table and the table of contents in the last Montana Administrative Register issued.

Statute Number and Department

2. Go to cross reference table at end of each title which lists MCA section numbers and corresponding ARM rule numbers.

ACCUMULATIVE TABLE

The Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) is a compilation of existing permanent rules of those executive agencies which have been designated by the Montana Administrative Procedure Act for inclusion in the ARM. The ARM is updated through December 31, 2000. This table includes those rules adopted during the period January 1, 2001 through March 31, 2001 and any proposed rule action that was pending during the past 6-month period. (A notice of adoption must be published within 6 months of the published notice of the proposed rule.) This table does not, however, include the contents of this issue of the Montana Administrative Register (MAR).

To be current on proposed and adopted rulemaking, it is necessary to check the ARM updated through December 31, 2000, this table and the table of contents of this issue of the MAR.

This table indicates the department name, title number, rule numbers in ascending order, catchphrase or the subject matter of the rule and the page number at which the action is published in the 2000 and 2001 Montana Administrative Registers.

To aid the user, the Accumulative Table includes rulemaking actions of such entities as boards and commissions listed separately under their appropriate title number. These will fall alphabetically after department rulemaking actions.

GENERAL PROVISIONS, Title 1

1.2.419 Scheduled Dates for the Montana Administrative Register, p. 2959, 3419

ADMINISTRATION, Department of, Title 2

- 2.5.502 State Procurement, p. 2092, 2962
 2.21.1301 and other rules Nondiscrimination Equal Opportunity Sexual Harassment Prevention Policy Equal Employment Opportunity Policy, p. 2732, 3515
- (State Fund)
- 2.55.320 and other rules Calculation of Manual Rates Variable Pricing Premium Rates and Premium Modifiers Ratemaking, p. 1, 657

AGRICULTURE, Department of, Title 4

I-IX	Specific Agricultura	l Chemical	Ground	Water
	Management Plan, p. 73	4		
4.3.202	and other rules - Loan	Qualifications	s, p. 2774	1, 3332
4.12.219	and other rules - Comm	ercial Feed, p	2762,	3333
4.12.1427	Shipping Point Inspect	ion Fees, p. 3	3434, 341	

- 4.12.1507 and other rule Mint Definitions Conditions Governing Importation of Mint and Mint Rootstock, p. 3286, 165
- 4.12.3001 and other rules Seeds, p. 2740, 3334

STATE AUDITOR, Title 6

- I Canadian Broker-Dealer Registration, p. 2777, 3336
- I-IX Viatical Settlement Agreements, p. 2095, 3155
- 6.6.507 and other rules Minimum Benefit Standards, p. 3055, 3518
- 6.6.1901 and other rules Comprehensive Health Care, p. 14, 343
- 6.6.4001 Valuation of Securities, p. 3059, 3519

(Classification Review Committee)

6.6.8301 Updating References to the NCCI Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance 1996 ed. - Adoption of New and Amended Classifications, p. 132

COMMERCE, Department of, Title 8

(Board of Athletics)

8.8.2902 and other rules - Female Contestants - Downs - Fouls - Handwraps - Officials, p. 505

(Board of Barbers)

8.10.414 and other rules - General Requirements - Posting Requirements - Toilet Facilities - Inspections, p. 208

(Chemical Dependency Counselors Certification Program)

8.11.106 and other rules - Education - Verification of Supervised Counseling Experience - Application Procedures - Written Examinations - Counselors Certified in Other States - Renewals - Continuing Education, p. 2344, 2963

(Board of Clinical Laboratory Science Practitioners) I Temporary Practice Permits, p. 2130, 166

(Board of Cosmetologists)

- 8.14.401 and other rules General Requirements Inspections School Layouts Curriculum Construction of Utensils and Equipment Cleaning and Sanitizing Tools and Equipment Storage and Handling of Salon Preparations Disposal of Waste Premises Definitions, p. 3467
- 8.14.402 and other rules General Practice of Cosmetology Schools Instructors Applications Examinations Electrology Schools Electrolysis Sanitary Standards for Electrology Salons Sanitary Rules for Beauty Salons and Cosmetology Schools Aiding

and Abetting Unlicensed Practice - Renewals - Booth Rental License Applications - Walls and Ceilings - Doors and Windows - Ventilation, p. 3437, 536

(State Electrical Board)

Notice of Extension of Comment Period - In the Matter of the Petition for Declaratory Ruling on the Clarification of Low Voltage Electrical Communication or Signal Equipment - Whether Parking Lot or Street Lighting are Covered by Electrical Code - Which Electrical Code is Applicable, p. 2780

(Board of Hearing Aid Dispensers)

- 8.20.402 and other rules Fees Record Retention Minimum Testing and Recording Procedures Transactional Document Requirements Form and Content, p. 3485, 781
- 8.20.407 and other rules Records Unprofessional Conduct Minimum Testing and Recording Procedures Definitions Transactional Documents, p. 777, 2514

(Board of Medical Examiners)

- I Occasional Case Exemptions, p. 591
- I-XI Purpose and Authority Definitions License Requirement Application for a Telemedicine Certificate Fees Failure to Submit Fees Issuance of Telemedicine Certificate Certificate Renewal Application Effect of Denial of Application for Telemedicine Certificate Effect of Telemedicine Certificate Sanctions, p. 1826, 2967
- 8.28.402 and other rules Definitions Medical Student's Permitted Activities Intern's Scope of Practice Resident's Scope of Practice Approved Residency, p. 3062, 3520
- 8.28.416 Examinations, p. 589
- 8.28.1508 Temporary Approval, p. 1385, 2965
- 8.28.1705 and other rules Ankle Surgery Certification Fees Failure to Submit Fees, p. 211

(Board of Nursing)

Notice of Extension of Comment Period - In the Matter of the Petition for Declaratory Ruling on the Issue of Whether the Scope of the Nurse Practice Act Allows All Levels of Nursing to Conduct Un-waived CLIA Tests, p. 2782

- 8.32.304 and other rules Advanced Practice Nursing Program Director Nurses' Assistance Program, p. 2132, 167
- 8.32.308 and other rules Temporary Permits General Requirements for Licensure Re-examination Licensure for Foreign Nurses Temporary Practice Permits Renewals Conduct of Nurses, p. 988, 2681
- Permits Renewals Conduct of Nurses, p. 988, 2681 8.32.405 and other rules - Licensure by Endorsement -Temporary Practice Permits - Renewals - Standards

Related to Registered Nurse's Responsibilities - Prescriptive Authority Committee - Initial Application Requirements for Prescriptive Authority - Limitations on Prescribing Controlled Substances - Quality Assurance of Advanced Practice Nursing - Renewal of Prescriptive Authority, p. 1539, 2683

(Board of Optometry)

8.36.412 Unprofessional Conduct, p. 3292, 659

8.36.601 Continuing Education Requirements, p. 741

(Board of Outfitters)

8.39.514 and other rules - Licensure - Guide or Professional Guide License - Licensure -- Fees for Outfitter, Operations Plan, Net Client Hunting Use (N.C.H.U.), and Guide or Professional Guide, p. 3295

8.39.514 Emergency Amendment - Licensure - Guide or Professional Guide License, p. 2516

(Board of Pharmacy)

8.40.406 and other rules - Labeling for Prescriptions - Unprofessional Conduct - Definitions - Preceptor Requirements - Conditions of Registration, p. 136, 783

(Board of Physical Therapy Examiners)

8.42.402 and other rules - Examinations - Licensure of Outof-State Applicants - Foreign-trained Physical Therapist Applicants - Continuing Education, p. 3488, 344

(Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors)

8.48.802 and other rules - License Seal - Safety and Welfare of the Public - Performance of Services in Areas of Competence - Conflicts of Interest - Avoidance of Improper Solicitation of Professional Employment - Direct Supervision - Definition of Responsible Charge - Introduction - Issuance of Public Statements, p. 2784, 553

(Board of Private Security Patrol Officers and Investigators) 8.50.437 Fee Schedule, p. 2351, 3162

(Board of Psychologists)

8.52.602 and other rules - Non-resident Psychological Services - Application Procedures - Required Supervised Experience - Examination - Fees - Parenting Plan Evaluations, p. 744

(Board of Public Accountants)

8.54.415 and other rules - Licensure of Out-of-State Applicants - Reactivation of Inactive and Revoked Status - Commissions and Contingent Fees - Definitions, p. 1718, 3164

(Board of Radiologic Technologists)

8.56.402 and other rules - Applications - Fee Schedule - Permit Application Types - Practice Limitations - Permit Examinations - Permit Fees, p. 510

(Board of Real Estate Appraisers)

8.57.403 and other rules - Examinations - Experience Qualifying Education Requirements - Continuing
Education - Fees - Adoption of USPAP by Reference Ad Valorem Tax Appraisal Experience - Qualifying
Experience - Inactive License Certification Reactivation of License - Regulatory Reviews Appraisal Review, p. 2560, 3521

8.57.409 Qualifying Education Requirements for General Certification, p. 593

(Board of Realty Regulation)

8.58.301 and other rules - Definitions - Continuing Education - Continuing Education Course Approval - Grounds for License Discipline - Grounds for Discipline of Property Management Licensees - Internet Advertising, p. 319, 785

8.58.411 Fee Schedule - Renewal - Property Management Fees, p. 2354, 3166

8.58.705 and other rule - Pre-licensure Course Requirements - Continuing Property Management Education, p. 327, 789

(Board of Respiratory Care Practitioners)
8.59.402 and other rule - Definitions - Fees, p. 141

(Board of Social Work Examiners and Professional Counselors)
8.61.401 and other rule - Definitions - Licensure
Requirements, p. 2791, 558

(Building Codes Division)

8.70.101 and other rules - Incorporation by Reference of Uniform Building Code - Funding of Code Enforcement Program - Certification of Code Enforcement Programs - Incorporation by Reference of Uniform Plumbing Code, p. 2358, 3168

(Local Government Assistance Division)

I Administration of the 2001 Federal Community Development Block Grant Program, p. 3493, 392

8.94.3806 Submission and Review of Applications Under the 2000-2001 Treasure State Endowment Program (TSEP), p. 516

(Board of Investments)

8.97.910 INTERCAP Program, p. 2142, 2969

(Economic Development Division)

I-XIII Montana Board of Research and Commercialization Technology, p. 1138, 2970

(Board of Housing)

I Confidentiality and Disclosure of Information in Possession of the Board of Housing, p. 144

(Travel Promotion and Development Division) 8.119.101 Tourism Advisory Council, p. 595

(Montana Lottery)

8.127.407 and other rule - Retailer Commission - Sales Staff Incentive Plan, p. 2363, 3199

EDUCATION, Title 10

(Office of Public Instruction)

10.16.3346 and other rule - Special Education - Aversive Treatment Procedures - Discovery Methods, p. 148, 396

10.16.3505 Special Education - Parental Consent, p. 597

(Board of Public Education)

I-CXXXVI Content and Performance Standards for Social Studies, Arts, Library Media, and Workplace Competencies, p. 1148, 2685, 3338

10.54.2501 and other rules - Content and Performance Standards for Career and Vocational/Technical Education - Program Area Standards - Curriculum and Assessment - Standards Review Schedule, p. 214

10.55.2001 and other rules - Standards of School Accreditation, p. 2145, 3340

10.59.103 Contents of the Contract Between the Board of Public Education and the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind Foundation, p. 2568, 3361

FISH, WILDLIFE, AND PARKS, Department of, Title 12

12.3.203 and other rules - License Agents, p. 2570, 3200, 17
12.6.1602 and other rules - Definition of Department Clarification of Game Bird Permits - Field Trial
Permits - Purchase and Sale of Game Birds, p. 3092,
3298, 345

(Fish, Wildlife, and Parks Commission)

I Limiting the Number of Class B-1 Nonresident Upland Game Bird Licenses that May be Sold Each Hunting Season, p. 151

I-V Western Fishing District - Limiting Watercraft to No Wake Speed for Lakes 35 Acres or Less - Instituting a No Wake Zone Contiguous to the Shoreline on Lakes Greater than 35 Acres, p. 1728, 2975

- 12.3.117 and other rules Special Permits Special License Drawings Establishing a License Preference System, p. 1552, 2519
- 12.6.801 and other rules Water Safety, p. 3068, 18
- 12.11.501 and other rules Creating a No Wake Zone at Hell Creek Marina on Fort Peck Reservoir - Updating the Index Rule - List of Water Bodies, p. 432
- 12.11.3205 Creating No Wake Zones on Hauser Lake near Devil's Elbow Campgrounds, Clark's Bay, and York Bridge Fishing Access Site, p. 601

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, Department of, Title 17

- 17.36.101 and other rules Subdivisions Standards for Onsite Subsurface Sewage Systems in New Subdivisions, p. 1832, 3371
- 17.50.801 and other rules Solid Waste Licensing Waste Disposal Recordkeeping Inspection for Businesses Pumping Wastes from Septic Tank Systems, Privies, Car Wash Sumps and Grease Traps, and Other Similar Wastes, p. 3299
- 17.54.101 and other rules Hazardous Waste Identification and Management of Hazardous Wastes, p. 2795, 169

(Board of Environmental Review)

- I and other rules Air Quality Use of Credible Evidence in Assessing Air Quality Compliance, p. 250, 1289, 3195, 3363
- 17.4.501 and other rules Major Facility Siting Regulation of Energy Generation or Conversion Facilities Linear Facilities, p. 243
- 17.8.101 and other rules Air Quality Odors that Create a Public Nuisance, p. 291
- 17.8.102 and other rules Air Quality Incorporation by Reference of Current Federal Statutes and Regulations into Air Quality Rules, p. 518
- 17.8.102 and other rule Air Quality Air Quality Incorporation by Reference, p. 1298, 2696
- 17.8.323 Air Quality Sulfur Oxide Emissions from Primary Copper Smelters, p. 3327, 560
- 17.8.504 Air Quality Air Quality Fees, p. 1927, 2697
- 17.20.804 and other rules Major Facility Siting Major Facility Siting Act, p. 2367, 2984
- 17.38.101 and other rules Public Water Supply Water Quality Siting Criteria for Public Sewage Systems, p. 1859, 3398
- 17.38.202 and other rules Public Water and Sewage System Requirements Public Water Supplies, p. 1879, 3400
- 17.38.606 Public Water Supply Administrative Penalties, p. 1281, 2698

(Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Board)

17.58.332 Insurance Coverage - Third-Party Liability - Investigation - Disclosure - Subrogation - Coordination of Benefits, p. 330, 660

TRANSPORTATION, Department of, Title 18

(Transportation Commission and Department of Transportation)
18.3.101 and other rules - Debarment of Contractors Due to
Violations of Department Requirements Determination of Contractor Responsibility, p. 2860,
3330, 3496

CORRECTIONS, Department of, Title 20

- 20.7.101 and other rules Supervised Release Program Admission, Program Review, Termination From, and Certification of Completion of Offenders in the Boot Camp Incarceration Program, p. 3498, 671
- 20.9.701 and other rule Parole and Discharge of Youth, p. 3196, 672

JUSTICE, Department of, Title 23

- I-V and other rules Use of a Full Legal Name on a Driver's License Change of Name on a Driver Record Collection of an Applicant's Social Security Number Proof of Residence, p. 1559, 2524
- 23.14.802 Grounds for Suspension or Revocation of Peace Officers' Standards and Training Certification, p. 334, 673
- 23.15.103 and other rules Permitting Proportionate Reductions in Crime Victim Benefits Affecting Payment of Benefits to Crime Victims, p. 295, 674

LABOR AND INDUSTRY, Department of, Title 24

- 24.11.101 and other rules Unemployment Insurance Matters, p. 1934, 2454, 3523
- 24.11.441 and other rules Unemployment Insurance Matters, p. 2456, 3539
- 24.11.466 and other rules Unemployment Insurance Benefit Overpayments, p. 3541
- 24.16.9007 Prevailing Wage Rates Non-construction Services, p. 523
- 24.16.9007 Prevailing Wage Rates Fringe Benefits for Ironworkers and Ironworker Forepersons Only, p. 3095, 444
- 24.21.411 and other rules Apprenticeship Standards, p. 3098
- 24.29.205 and other rules Workers' Compensation Matters, p. 1733, 2701

(Workers' Compensation Judge)

24.5.317 Procedural Rule - Medical Records, p. 153A, 397

(Board of Personnel Appeals)

24.26.630 and other rules - Board of Personnel Appeals Matters, p. 154, 446

LIVESTOCK, Department of, Title 32

32.2.201 and other rules - Rules Relating to the Montana Environmental Policy Act, p. 2578, 3409

32.2.401 and other rule - Fees Charged to Record, Transfer, or Rerecord New or Existing Brands or to Provide Certified Copies of Recorded Brands - Fees Charged by the Montana Department of Livestock Veterinary Diagnostic Laboratory, p. 2869, 3411

32.5.101 and other rules - Laboratory Services, p. 2883, 3412
32.6.712 Food Safety and Inspection Service (Meat and Poultry), p. 160, 448, 561

32.8.101 and other rules - Fluid Milk - Grade A Milk Products
- Milk Freshness Dating, p. 2372, 2985

(Board of Milk Control)

32.24.301 and other rules - Pricing of Producer Milk - Utilization of Surplus Milk - Procedures to Purchase and Market Surplus Milk - Definitions, p. 2878, 3413

NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVATION, Department of, Title 36

I-XII Control of Timber Slash and Debris, p. 928, 2526
36.21.415 and other rule - Fees - Tests for Yield and Drawdown, p. 3504, 562

(Board of Oil and Gas Conservation)

36.22.302 and other rules - Definitions - Adoption of Forms Drilling Permits Pending Special Field Rules Reports from Transporters, Refiners and Gasoline or
Extraction Plants - Approval for Pulling Casing and
Re-entering Wells - Restoration of Surface Plugging and Restoration Bond - Application Contents
and Requirements - Financial Responsibility - Notice
of Application - Exempt Aquifers - Injection Fee Well Classification - Area of Review - Certification
of Enhanced Recovery Projects - Application Contents and Requirements, p. 2379, 3542

(Board of Land Commissioners and Department of Natural Resources and Conservation)

36.25.102 and other rule - Rental Rates for Cabin Site Leases on State Trust Lands and Associated Improvements, p. 3104, 22

36.25.110 Minimum Rental Rate for Grazing Leases under the Jurisdiction of the State Board of Land Commissioners, p. 756

PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, Department of, Title 37

- I and other rules Communicable Disease Control, p. 1972, 2528, 2986
- I-XII Quality Assurance for Managed Care Plans, p. 381
- 16.10.201 and other rules Food Regulations, p. 2206, 3201
- 16.10.1301 and other rules Swimming Pools, Spas and Swimming Areas, p. 2178, 3232
- 16.24.101 and other rules Transfer from the Department of
 Health and Environmental Sciences Children's
 Special Health Services Program Infant Screening
 Tests and Eye Treatment Program Block Grant Funds
 Program Documentation and Studies of Abortions Family Planning Program Deficiencies, p. 398
- 16.24.901 and other rules State Plans for Maternal and Child Health (MCH) Lab Services Montana Health Care Authority, p. 379
- 16.32.302 Health Care Licensure, p. 772
- 16.32.302 Health Care Licensure, p. 163, 675
- 37.5.307 and other rules Fair Hearings and Contested Case Proceedings, p. 622
- 37.34.1801 and other rule Accreditation Standards for Provider Programs of Community-Based Developmental Disabilities Services, p. 1483, 3171
- 37.40.302 and other rules Nursing Facilities, p. 642
- 37.40.905 and other rules Medicaid Cross-over Pricing, p. 526
- 37.49.413 and other rule IV-E Foster Care Eligibility, p. 2600, 3545
- 37.50.901 Interstate Compact on the Placement of Children, p. 337, 676
- 37.70.401 and other rules Low Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP) Low Income Weatherization Assistance Program (LIWAP), p. 2188, 2707
- 37.70.601 Low Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP), p. 3118, 401
- 37.80.201 and other rules Child Care Subsidy Programs, p. 1798, 2454
- 37.85.212 Resource Based Relative Value Scale (RBRVS) Reimbursement, p. 612
- 37.86.105 and other rules Mental Health Services, p. 2889, 27, 417, 564
- 37.86.1001 and other rules Dental Services Eyeglasses Reimbursement, p. 617
- 37.86.1105 Reimbursement to State Institutions for Outpatient Drugs, p. 2388, 3176
- 37.86.1802 and other rules Medicaid Fees and Reimbursement Requirements for Prosthetic Devices, Durable Medical Equipment (DME) and Medical Supplies, p. 604
- 37.86.2207 and other rules Emergency Amendment Medicaid Mental Health Services, p. 791
- 37.86.2207 and other rules Mental Health Services, p. 436
- 37.86.2401 and other rules Medicaid Transportation and Ambulance Services, p. 759

- 37.86.2605 Medicaid Hospital Reimbursement, p. 626
- 37.86.2801 and other rules Emergency Amendment Medicaid Reimbursement for Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital Services, p. 403, 677
- 37.89.114 Emergency Amendment Mental Health Services Plan, Covered Services, p. 413
- 46.11.101 and other rules Transfer from the Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services Food and Nutrition Services, p. 3555
- 46.18.101 and other rules Transfer from the Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services Families Achieving Independence in Montana (FAIM), p. 3414
- 46.18.122 Families Achieving Independence in Montana (FAIM) Financial Assistance Standards, p. 3109, 183
- 46.20.106 Emergency Amendment Mental Health Services Plan Eligibility, p. 2529
- 46.20.106 Mental Health Services Plan Eligibility, p. 2510, 3418
- 46.20.106 Mental Health Services Plan Eligibility, p. 2202, 3177
- 46.30.501 and other rules Conduct of Contested Hearings in Child Support Establishment and Enforcement Cases, p. 2471, 3547
- 46.30.507 and other rules Transfer from the Department of Social and Rehabilitation Services Child Support Enforcement, p. 3551

PUBLIC SERVICE REGULATION, Department of, Title 38

- I Unauthorized Change of a Telecommunications Provider, p. 775
- I-III Flexible Pricing for Regulated Telecommunications Service, p. 2000, 48
- 38.5.1108 Refunds of Utility Customer Deposits, p. 2953, 45
- 38.5.2202 Pipeline Safety, p. 2956, 47

REVENUE, Department of, Title 42

- I & II In-state Breweries, p. 778
- 42.2.302 and other rules Public Participation General Application of Tax Payments, p. 2603, 3557
- 42.4.101 and other rules Tax Incentives Credits for Alternative Energy Systems, p. 3151, 3560
- 42.11.201 and other rules Liquor Licensing, p. 2614, 449
- 42.11.301 and other rules Liquor Distribution, p. 3507, 348
- 42.12.101 and other rules Liquor Licenses, p. 789, 1762, 2708
- 42.14.101 and other rule Lodging Facility Use Taxes, p. 2640, 3561
- 42.18.106 and other rules Appraisal of Agricultural and Forest Land Commercial Industrial Residential Property, p. 2642, 3562
- 42.18.124 Clarification of Valuation Periods for Class 4 Property, p. 301, 463

- 42.21.113 and other rules Property Taxes, p. 3131, 3563
- 42.22.1311 and other rules Centrally Assessed Property, p. 3121, 3565
- 42.25.1101 and other rules Natural Resource Taxes, p. 2390, 2988
- 42.31.102 and other rules Tobacco and Contractor's License Taxes, p. 2657, 3569

SECRETARY OF STATE, Title 44

1.2.419 Scheduled Dates for the Montana Administrative Register, p. 2959, 3419

BOARD APPOINTEES AND VACANCIES

Section 2-15-108, MCA, passed by the 1991 Legislature, directed that all appointing authorities of all appointive boards, commissions, committees and councils of state government take positive action to attain gender balance and proportional representation of minority residents to the greatest extent possible.

One directive of 2-15-108, MCA, is that the Secretary of State publish monthly in the *Montana Administrative Register* a list of appointees and upcoming or current vacancies on those boards and councils.

In this issue, appointments effective in April 2001, appear. Vacancies scheduled to appear from June 1, 2001, through August 31, 2001, are listed, as are current vacancies due to resignations or other reasons. Individuals interested in serving on a board should refer to the bill that created the board for details about the number of members to be appointed and necessary qualifications.

Each month, the previous month's appointees are printed, and current and upcoming vacancies for the next three months are published.

IMPORTANT

Membership on boards and commissions changes constantly. The following lists are current as of May 14, 2001.

For the most up-to-date information of the status of membership, or for more detailed information on the qualifications and requirements to serve on a board, contact the appointing authority.

BOARD AND COUNCIL APPOINTEES FROM APRIL, 2001

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	Succeeds	Appointment/End Date
Board of Architects (Commerce Mr. Larry Chaffin Dillon Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Geelan	4/11/2001 3/27/2004
Mr. Tom Wood Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	Governor representative of	Hill MSU-Bozeman School	4/11/2001 3/27/2004 of Architecture
Board of Clinical Laboratory Mr. John Michael Long Glendive Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Bennett	4/25/2001 4/16/2005
Dr. Peter A.F. Smith Kalispell Qualifications (if required):	Governor physician	Walker	4/25/2001 4/16/2005
Board of County Printing (Com Ms. Nancy Clark Ryegate Qualifications (if required):	Governor	reappointed	4/27/2001 4/1/2003
Ms. Julie Jordan Miles City Qualifications (if required):	Governor county commissione	reappointed r	4/27/2001 4/1/2003
Mr. Verle L. Rademacher White Sulphur Springs Qualifications (if required):	Governor representative of	reappointed the printing indus	4/27/2001 4/1/2003 try

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Board of County Printing (Com Ms. Marianne Roose Eureka	merce) cont. Governor	reappointed	4/27/2001 4/1/2003
Qualifications (if required):	county commissione	er	
Mr. Curtis Starr Malta	Governor	reappointed	4/27/2001 4/1/2003
Qualifications (if required):	representative of	the printing indus	stry
Board of Directors of State C	ompensation Insurance	e Fund (Administra	ation)
Mr. Derek Grewatz Missoula	Governor	Donahue	4/27/2001 4/28/2005
Qualifications (if required):	licensed insurance	producer	
Ms. Susan Knedler Lewistown	Governor	Brouelette	4/27/2001 4/28/2005
Qualifications (if required):	representative of	private industry a	and a policy holder
Mr. Herbert Leuprecht Butte	Governor	reappointed	4/27/2001 4/28/2005
Qualifications (if required):	representative of	private industry a	and a policy holder
Board of Personnel Appeals (L	abor and Industry)		
Mr. Ed Maronick East Helena	Governor	Doney	4/17/2001 1/1/2003
Qualifications (if required):	substitute managem	ent representative	2
Mr. Michael O'Neill Butte	Governor	Talcott	4/17/2001 1/1/2005
Qualifications (if required):	management represe	entative	

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Board of Personnel Appeals (I Mr. James P. Reardon East Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Perkins	4/17/2001 1/1/2005
Mr. Thomas Schneider Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor labor union repres	reappointed sentative	4/17/2001 1/1/2005
Board of Radiologic Technolog Dr. Dennis Palmer Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Kurland	4/17/2001 7/1/2002
Board of Research and Commerce Mr. Leonard J. Smith, Jr. Poplar Qualifications (if required):	Governor	y (Commerce) Belcourt	4/18/2001 7/1/2002
Capital Finance Advisory Cour Mr. Dick Anderson Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	McGee	4/17/2001 2/11/2002 s
Mr. Jerry Hoover Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing the M	Little Montana Health Faci	4/17/2001 2/11/2002 lity Authority
Director Jan Sensibaugh Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing the D	Simonich Department of Envir	4/17/2001 2/11/2002 conmental Quality

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	Succeeds	Appointment/End Date
Capital Finance Advisory Coun Sen. Chuck Swysgood Dillon Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Lewis	4/17/2001 2/11/2002
Coal Board (Commerce) Mr. Alan Evans Roundup Qualifications (if required):	Governor representative of	reappointed District 4 and an	4/10/2001 1/1/2005 impact area
Mr. Gerald Feda Glasgow Qualifications (if required):	Governor representative of	reappointed District 3	4/10/2001 1/1/2005
Mr. Roger Knapp Hysham Qualifications (if required):	Governor representative of	reappointed District 4 and an	4/10/2001 1/1/2005 impact area
Mr. James W. Royan Missoula Qualifications (if required):	Governor representative of	reappointed District 1	4/10/2001 1/1/2005
Developmental Disabilities Pl	anning and Advisory	Council (Public He	ealth and Human
Services) Rep. Bob Lawson Whitefish Qualifications (if required):	Governor legislator	reappointed	4/17/2001 1/1/2002
Sen. Bea McCarthy Anaconda Qualifications (if required):	Governor legislator	reappointed	4/17/2001 1/1/2002

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Family Education Savings Over Auditor John Morrison Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	O'Keefe	er Education) 4/17/2001 7/1/2001
Ms. Margie Thompson Butte Qualifications (if required):	Governor presiding officer	Davison of the Board of Re	4/17/2001 7/1/2003 egents
Governor's Council on Familie Ms. Kristen Blystone Great Falls Qualifications (if required):	Governor	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Reverend Peter Bruno Terry Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Mr. Tom Burnett Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Floral Goodman Laurel Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Kathleen Heiser Billings Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Kathleen Jensen Westby Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Governor's Council on Familie Ms. Crystal LaPlant Browning Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Human Services) not listed	cont. 4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Julie Lovell Big Timber Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Sen. Dale Mahlum Missoula Qualifications (if required):	Governor legislator	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Lilly Motl Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor youth representati	not listed ve	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Arlene Nicholoson Diehl East Helena Qualifications (if required):		not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Mr. Bill Pena Seeley Lake Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Mr. Stanley Rathman Choteau Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Melissa Sundberg Victor Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Governor's Council on Familie Mr. Peyton Terry Glasgow Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Human Services) on not listed	cont. 4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Mr. John Vincent Gallatin Gateway Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Ms. Kim Visser Missoula Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	not listed	4/24/2001 4/24/2003
Health Care Advisory Council Director Gail Gray Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Ekanger	4/18/2001 6/30/2001
MSU Billings Executive Board Ms. Carol Willis Billings Qualifications (if required):	Governor	reappointed	4/15/2001 4/15/2004
MSU Northern Executive Board Mr. Doug Ross Havre Qualifications (if required):	Governor	reappointed	4/15/2001 4/15/2004
Montana Abstinence Education Rep. Ken Peterson Billings Qualifications (if required):	Governor	blic Health and H not listed	uman Services) 4/5/2001 3/14/2002

Appointee	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Montana Abstinence Education A Ms. Susan Smith Billings Qualifications (if required):	Governor	blic Health and Hu Andrews	man Services) cont. 4/5/2001 3/14/2002
Montana Children's Trust Fund Ms. Judy Birch Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	reappointed	4/10/2001 1/1/2004
Mr. Mark A. Bryan Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	reappointed	4/10/2001 1/1/2004
Ms. Betty Hidalgo Great Falls Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	Campbell	4/10/2001 1/1/2004
Rep. Betty Lou Kasten Brockway Qualifications (if required):	Governor public member	Astroth	4/10/2001 1/1/2004
Ms. Nan LeFebvre Helena Qualifications (if required): Services	Governor representative of	Hunter Department of Publ	4/10/2001 1/1/2004 ic Health and Human
Montana Public Safety Communic Director Barbara Ranf Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Menzies	4/15/2001 5/31/2002 Administration

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Montana State University Execuses. Beatrice Taylor Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	Governor	sity System) reappointed	4/15/2001 4/15/2004
Montana Tech of the Universit Mr. Tad Dale Butte Qualifications (if required):	Governor	ive Board (Universi reappointed	ty System) 4/15/2001 4/15/2004
Montana-Alberta Bilateral Adv Rep. Edith J. Clark Sweet Grass Qualifications (if required):	Governor	not listed	4/27/2001 4/27/2003
Mr. Mark Cole Shelby Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing priva	not listed ate citizens	4/27/2001 4/27/2003
Sen. E.P. (Pete) Ekegren Choteau Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing the l	not listed Legislative branch	4/27/2001 4/27/2003
Director David A. Galt Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing the e	not listed	4/27/2001 4/27/2003
Rep. Carol C. Juneau Browning Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing the l	not listed Legislative branch	4/27/2001 4/27/2003

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Montana-Alberta Bilateral Adv Lt. Governor Karl Ohs Harrison Qualifications (if required):	Governor	not listed	4/27/2001 4/27/2003
Director W. Ralph Peck Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing the ex	not listed kecutive branch	4/27/2001 4/27/2003
Sen. Glenn A. Roush Cut Bank Qualifications (if required):	Governor representing the le	not listed	4/27/2001 4/27/2003
Private Land/Public Wildlife Mr. Dan Walker Billings Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Simpson	4/5/2001 6/30/2002
Public Employees' Retirement Ms. Carol Lambert Hammond Qualifications (if required):	Governor	n) not listed	4/1/2001 4/1/2006
Risk Management Executive Country Ms. Virginia Cameron Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Galloway	4/17/2001 2/21/2003 Environmental Quality
Ms. Erica Hess Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor representative of	Pedersen the Secretary of S	4/17/2001 2/21/2003 tate's Office

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
Risk Management Executive Cou Ms. Karen Revious Helena	ncil (Administration Governor	n) cont. Cameron	4/17/2001 2/21/2003
Qualifications (if required):	representative of	the Department of	•
Ms. Barbara Sawitzke Helena	Governor	Broadwater	4/5/2001 2/21/2003
Qualifications (if required):	representing the C	office of Public In	
Ms. Lisa Smith Helena	Governor	Chenovick	4/17/2001 2/21/2003
Qualifications (if required):	representative of	the Judiciary	
State Banking Board (Commerce Ms. Jamie Doggett White Sulphur Springs Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Pavlonnis	4/4/2001 7/1/2001
State Board of Hail Insurance Mr. Keith Arntzen Hilger Qualifications (if required):	Governor	not listed	4/18/2001 4/18/2004
State-Tribal Economic Develor Director Mark A. Simonich Helena Qualifications (if required):	Governor	Blouke	4/17/2001 6/30/2001 Commerce
University of Montana Executi Ms. Arlene Breum Missoula Qualifications (if required):	Governor	System) reappointed	4/15/2001 4/15/2004

<u>Appointee</u>	Appointed by	<u>Succeeds</u>	Appointment/End Date
University of Montana - West Ms. Betty Iverson Dillon Qualifications (if required)	Governor	(University System) reappointed	4/15/2001 4/15/2004
Upper Clark Fork River Basin Director M. Jeff Hagener Helena Qualifications (if required)	Governor	Graham	4/17/2001 4/26/2002

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Advisory Council on Community Service (Governor) Ms. Kelly Raths, Lewistown Qualifications (if required): youth representative	Governor	7/1/2001
Aging Advisory Council (Public Health and Human Services) Ms. Fern Prather, Big Timber Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	7/18/2001
Ms. Jeannette Stevenson, Hobson Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	7/18/2001
Mr. Irvin Hutchison, Chester Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	7/18/2001
Mr. Bud Clinch, Libby Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	7/18/2001
Agricultural Heritage Commission (Agriculture) Mr. Charles M. Jarecki, Polson Qualifications (if required): appointed by the Speaker of	Speaker the House	7/21/2001
Mr. Paul Gatzemeier, Billings Qualifications (if required): appointed by the President	Senate President of the Senate	7/21/2001
Agriculture Development Council (Agriculture) Mr. Larry Barber, Coffee Creek Qualifications (if required): actively engaged in agricul	Governor ture	7/1/2001
Mr. P.L. "Joe" Boyd, Billings Qualifications (if required): actively engaged in agricul	Governor ture	7/1/2001
Mr. W. Ralph Peck, Helena Qualifications (if required): Director of the Department	Governor of Agriculture	7/1/2001

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Board of Barbers (Commerce) Mr. Max DeMars, Big Timber Qualifications (if required):	practicing barber	Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Cosmetology (Commerc Ms. Karen Underwood, Billings Qualifications (if required):	e) cosmetologist	Governor	7/1/2001
Ms. Verna Dupuis, Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	affiliated with school of c	Governor cosmetology	7/1/2001
Ms. Pam Lemieux, Helena Qualifications (if required):	cosmetologist	Governor	7/1/2001
Ms. Darlene Battaiola, Butte Qualifications (if required):	affiliated with school of c	Governor cosmetology	7/1/2001
Ms. Mary Lou Nelson, Plentywoo Qualifications (if required):		Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Hearing Aid Dispenser Mr. David King, Billings Qualifications (if required):	s (Commerce) licensed hearing aid dispen	Governor ser with national o	7/1/2001 certification
Board of Landscape Architects Ms. Shelly Engler, Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	(Commerce) licensed landscape architect	Governor t	7/1/2001
Ms. Janet Thomas, Hobson Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	7/1/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Board of Nursing (Commerce) Ms. Kim Powell, Missoula Qualifications (if required): registered professional nur	Governor rse	7/1/2001
Board of Pharmacy (Commerce) Mr. John Poush, Billings Qualifications (if required): pharmacist	Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Physical Therapy Examiners (Commerce) Ms. Linda Stordahl, Butte Qualifications (if required): licensed physical therapist	Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Private Security Patrol Officers and Investigator Mr. Gary Gray, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): representative of contract	Governor	8/1/2001 ons
Mr. Michael Ames, Colstrip Qualifications (if required): representative of a proprie	Governor etary security organ	8/1/2001 ization
Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors (Comme Mr. David M. Hummel, Billings Qualifications (if required): professional engineer	erce) Governor	7/1/2001
Mr. Daniel M. McCauley, Helena Qualifications (if required): professional engineer	Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Public Accountants (Commerce) Mr. Robert Wolfe, Conrad Qualifications (if required): licensed public accountant	Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Radiologic Technologists (Commerce) Dr. Daniel Alzheimer, Helena Qualifications (if required): physician who employs a rad	Governor Hiologic technologis	7/1/2001 t

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Board of Radiologic Technologists (Commerce) cont. Ms. Debbie Hepp, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): licensed radiologic technol	Governor Logist	7/1/2001
Board of Regents of Higher Education (Education) Ms. Jessica Kobos, Missoula Qualifications (if required): student representative	Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Research and Commercialization Technology (Comme Mr. Chuck Merja, Sun River Qualifications (if required): public member	erce) Governor	7/1/2001
Mr. William Crain, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): appointed by the Senate Mino	Minority Leader ority Leader	7/1/2001
Mr. Dennis Toussaint, Stevensville Qualifications (if required): appointed by the Speaker of	Speaker the House	7/1/2001
Board of Respiratory Care Practitioners (Commerce) Dr. Gregory Paulauskis, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): respiratory care practition	Governor ner	7/1/2001
Board of Sanitarians (Commerce) Ms. Janet Bauer, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): registered sanitarian	Governor	7/1/2001
Board of Veterinary Medicine (Commerce) Dr. Kenneth Brown, Billings Qualifications (if required): veterinarian	Governor	7/31/2001
Board of Water Well Contractors (Natural Resources and Co Mr. Pat Byrne, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): water well contractor	onservation) Governor	7/1/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Burial Preservation Board (Indian Affairs) Mr. Carl Fourstar, Poplar Qualifications (if required): representative of the Assir	Governor niboine Tribe	8/22/2001
Dr. Randall Skelton, Missoula Qualifications (if required): physical anthropologist	Governor	8/22/2001
Ms. Jennie Parker, Ashland Qualifications (if required): representative of the North	Governor nern Cheyenne Tribe	8/22/2001
Mr. Melbert Eaglefeathers, Butte Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	8/22/2001
Mr. Tony Incashola, Pablo Qualifications (if required): representative of the Confe Tribes	Governor ederated Salish and	8/22/2001 Kootenai
Mr. Stephen S.K. Platt, Helena Qualifications (if required): representative of the State	Governor Historic Preservat	8/22/2001 cion Office
Mr. Ken Talksabout, Browning Qualifications (if required): representative of the Black	Governor xfeet Tribe	8/22/2001
Chief Water Judge (Justice) Mr. C. Bruce Loble, Bozeman Qualifications (if required): none specified	Supreme Court	6/30/2001
Community Services Advisory Council (Governor) Mr. Bob Simoneau, Helena Qualifications (if required): representative of the Depart	Governor rtment of Labor and	7/1/2001 Industry
Ms. Patricia J. Gunderson, Belgrade Qualifications (if required): representative of labor uni	Governor	7/1/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Community Services Advisory Council (Governor) cont. Rep. Billie Krenzler, Billings Qualifications (if required): representative of local g	Governor overnment	7/1/2001
Mr. Bill Cain, Butte Qualifications (if required): representative of busines	Governor s	7/1/2001
Ms. Kathie Bailey, Lewistown Qualifications (if required): representative of local g	Governor overnment	7/1/2001
Family Education Savings Oversight Committee (Commission Mr. Mark A. Simonich, Helena Qualifications (if required): Director of the Department	Governor	ion) 7/1/2001
Auditor John Morrison, Helena Qualifications (if required): state insurance commission	Governor ner	7/1/2001
Governor's Local Coal Impact Review Council (Commerce) Mr. Alan Evans, Roundup Qualifications (if required): member of the Coal Board	Governor	6/30/2001
Sen. Mack Cole, Hysham Qualifications (if required): state senator from a coal	Governor impact area	6/30/2001
Rep. Lila V. Taylor, Busby Qualifications (if required): state representative from	Governor a coal impact area	6/30/2001
Mr. Robert W. Cope, Colstrip Qualifications (if required): representative of the coa	Governor l industry	6/30/2001
Mr. Tony Ritter, Decker Qualifications (if required): representative of the coa	Governor l industry	6/30/2001

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Governor's Local Coal Impact R Mr. John Pretty On Top, Hardin Qualifications (if required):		Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Joan Stahl, Forsyth Qualifications (if required):	county commissioner from a	Governor coal impact area	6/30/2001
Mr. Larry Vandersloot, Hardin Qualifications (if required):	representative of a city wi	Governor thin a coal impact	6/30/2001 area
Mayor John Williams, Colstrip Qualifications (if required):	representative of a city wi	Governor thin a coal impact	6/30/2001 area
Mr. Rusty Rokita, Hardin Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Governor's Upper Yellowstone R Mr. Tom Lane, Livingston Qualifications (if required):	iver Task Force (Fish, Wild representing ranchers who l	Governor	6/28/2001
Mr. John Bailey, Livingston Qualifications (if required):	representing local business	Governor	6/28/2001
Mr. Joel Marshik, Helena Qualifications (if required):	representing the Department	Governor of Transportation	6/28/2001
Mr. Bob Wiltshire, Livingston Qualifications (if required):	representing the angling co	Governor mmunity	6/28/2001
Mr. Mike Atwood, Livingston Qualifications (if required):	representing local business	Governor	6/28/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Governor's Upper Yellowstone River Task Force (Fish, Wild Ms. Michelle Goodwine, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing local busines	Governor	ont. 6/28/2001
Mr. Jerry O'Haire, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing ranchers who	Governor live by the river	6/28/2001
Mr. Roy Aserlind, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing property owner	Governor rs	6/28/2001
Mr. Rod Siring, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing property owner	Governor rs	6/28/2001
Mr. Brant Oswald, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing conservation	Governor groups	6/28/2001
Ms. Ellen Woodbury, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing Park County	Governor	6/28/2001
Mr. Doug McDonald, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing the Corps of	Governor Engineers	6/28/2001
Mr. Laurence Siroky, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing the Departmen Conservation	Governor t of Natural Resourc	6/28/2001 es and
Mr. Stuart Lehman, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing the Departmen	Governor t of Environmental Ç	6/28/2001 Quality
Mr. Joel Tohtz, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing the Departmen	Governor t of Fish, Wildlife,	6/28/2001 and Parks

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Governor's Upper Yellowstone River Task Force (Fish, Wild Mr. Jim Woodhull, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing the City of Li	Governor	nt. 6/28/2001
Mr. David Haug, Livingston Qualifications (if required): representing the Park Conse	Governor rvation District	6/28/2001
Health Care Advisory Council (Public Health and Human Ser Ms. Tanya M. Ask, Missoula Qualifications (if required): representing Region 5	vices) Governor	6/30/2001
Director Gail Gray, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing the executive	Governor branch	6/30/2001
Dr. Lawrence R. Palazzo, Glasgow Qualifications (if required): representing Region 1	Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Kristianne Wilson, Billings Qualifications (if required): representing Region 3	Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Lynn O'Malley, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): representing Region 2	Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Nancy Taylor, Townsend Qualifications (if required): representing Region 4	Governor	6/30/2001
Independent Living Advisory Council (Public Health and Human Tom Tripp, Butte Qualifications (if required): none specified	man Services) Director	6/1/2001
Information Technology Advisory Council (Administration) Ms. Lois A. Menzies, Helena Qualifications (if required): Administration	Director	7/1/2001

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Information Technology Advisor Mr. Bob Person, Helena Qualifications (if required):	ry Council (Administration) Legislative Branch	cont. Director	7/1/2001
Mr. William Salisbury, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Transportation	Director	7/1/2001
Mr. Jim Reno, Billings Qualifications (if required):	local government	Director	7/1/2001
Mr. Mike Billings, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Public Health and Human Se	Director rvices	7/1/2001
Mr. Scott Buswell, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Public Education	Director	7/1/2001
Director Mark A. Simonich, Hel Qualifications (if required):		Director	7/1/2001
Mr. Patrick A. Chenovick, Hele Qualifications (if required):		Director	7/1/2001
Mr. George Harris, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Tier 2	Director	7/1/2001
Ms. Sharon McCabe, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Tier 1	Director	7/1/2001
Ms. Mary Bryson, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Tier 3	Director	7/1/2001
Mr. Larry Fasbender, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Tier 3	Director	7/1/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Information Technology Advisory Council (Administration) Ms. Joyce Scott, Helena Qualifications (if required): University System	cont. Director	7/1/2001
Ms. Angela Fultz-Nordstrom, Helena Qualifications (if required): Tier 1	Director	7/1/2001
Interagency Coordinating Council for State Prevention Programming	gram (Public Health	and Human
Services) Ms. DeAnn Thomas, Kalispell Qualifications (if required): experiences with prevention	Governor n prograMs. and serv	7/1/2001 rices
Mr. William Snell, Billings Qualifications (if required): experiences with prevention	Governor n programs and servi	7/1/2001 .ces
Interim Court Funding and Structure Committee (Administration Judge Kenneth R. Neill, Belt Qualifications (if required): representing the Montana J	Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Mike Hutchin, Polson Qualifications (if required): representing counties	Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Jim Nugent, Missoula Qualifications (if required): representing cities and to	Governor wns	6/30/2001
Judge Kevin A. Hart, Anaconda Qualifications (if required): representing the Montana Ma	Governor agistrates	6/30/2001
Ms. Lori Maloney, Butte Qualifications (if required): representing Clerks of Cou	Governor rt	6/30/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Interim Local Government Funding and Structure Committee Ms. Sue M. Olson, Roundup Qualifications (if required): representing counties	(Administration) Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Mary Bryson, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing the state exec	Governor utive branch of gov	6/30/2001 ernment
Mr. John Lawton, Great Falls Qualifications (if required): representing cities and tow	Governor ns	6/30/2001
Mr. Harold Blattie, Columbus Qualifications (if required): representing counties	Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Susan M. Nicosia, Columbia Falls Qualifications (if required): representing cities and tow	Governor ns	6/30/2001
Ms. Patricia Cook, Polson Qualifications (if required): representing county treasur	Governor	6/30/2001
Judicial Standards Commission (Justice) Mr. Victor F. Valgenti, Missoula Qualifications (if required): none specified	Supreme Court	6/30/2001
Judge John Warner, Havre Qualifications (if required): none specified	Supreme Court	6/30/2001
Ms. Barbara Evans, Missoula Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	7/1/2001
Mental Disabilities Board of Visitors (Governor's Office) Mr. Robert W. Visscher, Livingston Qualifications (if required): professional	Governor	8/1/2001

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Mental Disabilities Board of V Dr. John Sampsel, Miles City Qualifications (if required):	,	cont. Governor	8/1/2001
Ms. Jennifer Pryor, Boulder Qualifications (if required): retarded	representative of organizat	Governor ion concerned with	8/1/2001 the mentally
<pre>Mr. Steve Cahill, Clancy Qualifications (if required): mentally ill</pre>	representative of organizat	Governor ion concerned with	8/1/2001 welfare of
Ms. Kathleen Driscoll Donovan, Qualifications (if required):	Hamilton consumer representative	Governor	8/1/2001
Montana Consensus Council's Bo Sen. Greg Jergeson, Chinook Qualifications (if required):	,	Governor	6/30/2001
Governor Marc Racicot, Helena Qualifications (if required):	ex-officio member	Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Michael E. Zimmerman, Butte Qualifications (if required):		Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Donald Snow, Missoula Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Monica Switzer, Richey Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Sen. Bob Keenan, Bigfork Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Montana Consensus Council's Boa Ms. Elaine Forrest, Wolf Point Qualifications (if required):	,	Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Anne Hedges, Helena Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Jane Jelinski, Helena Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Alan Rollo, Great Falls Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Mat Millenbach, Billings Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Cary Hegreberg, Townsend Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	6/30/2001
Montana Historical Society Boar Mr. Robert Morgan, Clancy Qualifications (if required):	d of Trustees (Montana Hispublic member	torical Society) Governor	7/1/2001
Mr. Larry McRae, Missoula Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	7/1/2001
Ms. Jean Birch, Great Falls Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	7/1/2001
Montana Library Services Adviso Mr. Bill Cochran, Billings Qualifications (if required):	ry Council (State Library)	Governor brary Association	6/10/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Montana Library Services Advisory Council (State Library) Rep. Linda McCulloch, Missoula Qualifications (if required): representing the Montana le	Governor	6/10/2001
Mr. Wes Plann, Terry Qualifications (if required): representing eastern Montan	Governor a users	6/10/2001
Ms. Gloria Wahl, Lewistown Qualifications (if required): representing central Montan	Governor a users	6/10/2001
Ms. Lois Fitzpatrick, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing academic libra	Governor ries	6/10/2001
Ms. Peggy Bloom, Missoula Qualifications (if required): representing western Montan	Governor a users	6/10/2001
Ms. Lynn Donvan, Sidney Qualifications (if required): representing school librari	Governor es	6/10/2001
Ms. Cheryl Heser, Forsyth Qualifications (if required): representing public librari	Governor es	6/10/2001
Ms. Myrle Tompkins, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing those who are library services	Governor unable to use tradi	6/10/2001 tional
Montana Mint Committee (Agriculture) Mr. Darrel Sperry, Corvallis Qualifications (if required): mint grower	Governor	7/1/2001
Montana Wheat and Barley Committee (Agriculture) Mr. Fred Elling, Rudyard Qualifications (if required): representative of District	Governor II and a Republican	8/20/2001

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Montana Wheat and Barley Commit Ms. Judy Vermulm, Cut Bank Qualifications (if required):	ttee (Agriculture) cont. representative of District	Governor III and a Democrat	8/20/2001
Motorcycle Safety Advisory Com Mr. Ken Radovich, Great Falls Qualifications (if required):		Governor	6/30/2001
Ms. Michele Hand, Missoula Qualifications (if required):	representative of a motorcy	Governor cle riding group	7/1/2001
Noxious Weed Authority Advisory Rep. Bob Gilbert, Sidney Qualifications (if required):	_	Director ation	7/30/2001
Rep. Robert Thoft, Stevensville Qualifications (if required):	e biological research and con	Director trol	7/30/2001
Mr. Jim Squires, Glendive Qualifications (if required):	agriculture crop production	Director	7/30/2001
Ms. Linda Ellison, Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	sportsman/wildlife group	Director	7/30/2001
Mr. Charles M. Jarecki, Polson Qualifications (if required):	at-large member	Director	7/30/2001
Mr. W. Ralph Peck, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Director	Director	7/30/2001
Mr. Bob Ullom, Billings Qualifications (if required):	herbicide dealer and applic	Director ator	7/30/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
Noxious Weed Authority Advisory Council (Agr Ms. Nancy Thuesen, Reserve Qualifications (if required): consumer group	Director	7/30/2001
Mr. Stephen Roth, Big Sandy Qualifications (if required): livestock pro-	Director duction	7/30/2001
Mr. W. Jack Erickson, Silver Bow Qualifications (if required): western count	Director y representative	7/30/2001
Mr. Jerry Weber, Joliet Qualifications (if required): eastern count	Director y representative	7/30/2001
Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Board (Mr. Gary Basso, Billings Qualifications (if required): representative	Environmental Quality) Governor e of the insurance industry	6/30/2001
Mr. Dallas Herron, Kalispell Qualifications (if required): representative	Governor e of the independent petroleum m	6/30/2001 arketers
Mr. Burl French, Kalispell Qualifications (if required): representative	Governor e of the petroleum services indu	6/30/2001 stry
State Banking Board (Commerce) Ms. Jamie Doggett, White Sulphur Springs Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	7/1/2001
Mr. Ted Goodwin, Billings Qualifications (if required): national bank	Governor	7/1/2001
State Electrical Board (Commerce) Mr. Tony Martel, Bozeman Qualifications (if required): public member	Governor	7/1/2001

Board/current position holder	Appointed by	Term end
State-Tribal Economic Development Commission (Governor) Director Mark A. Simonich, Helena Qualifications (if required): representative of the Depart	Governor rtment of Commerce	6/30/2001
Mr. Wyman McDonald, Helena Qualifications (if required): representing the Office of	Governor Indian Affairs	6/30/2001
Ms. Melissa G. Buckles, Wolf Point Qualifications (if required): representing the Fort Peck	Governor Assiniboine and Sic	6/30/2001 oux Tribe
Mr. Jonathan Windy Boy, Box Elder Qualifications (if required): representing the Chippewa (Governor Cree Tribe	6/30/2001
Ms. Emorie Davis Bird, East Glacier Park Qualifications (if required): representing the Blackfeet	Governor Tribe	6/30/2001
Ms. Jami Hamel, Pablo Qualifications (if required): representing the Confederat	Governor ced Salish and Koote	6/30/2001 enai Tribes
Mr. Joe Little Coyote, Sr., Lame Deer Qualifications (if required): representing the Northern (Governor Cheyenne Tribe	6/30/2001
Ms. Yvonne Iron, Crow Agency Qualifications (if required): representing the Crow Tribe	Governor	6/30/2001
Mr. Lloyd Irvine, Pablo Qualifications (if required): representing the Confederat	Governor ced Salish and Koote	6/30/2001 enai Tribe
Mr. Ben Speak Thunder, Harlem Qualifications (if required): representing the Fort Belkr Tribe	Governor nap Gros Ventre and	6/30/2001 Assiniboine

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
SummitNet Executive Council (Mr. Jim Currie, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Administration) representing a state agency	Governor	7/1/2001
Director Barbara Ranf, Helena Qualifications (if required):	representing a state agency	Governor	7/1/2001
Mr. Scott Buswell, Helena Qualifications (if required):	representative of the Office	Governor e of Public Instruc	7/1/2001 tion
Commissioner Janet Kelly, Mile Qualifications (if required):		Governor tive	7/1/2001
Mr. Richard A. Crofts, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Commissioner of Higher Educa	Governor ation	7/1/2001
Ms. Mary Bryson, Helena Qualifications (if required):	state agency representative	Governor	7/1/2001
Ms. Karen Strege, Helena Qualifications (if required):	state agency representative	Governor	7/1/2001
Teachers' Retirement Board (A Ms. Virginia Egli, Glendive Qualifications (if required):	dministration) retired teacher	Governor	7/1/2001
Mr. James Turcotte, Helena Qualifications (if required):	public member	Governor	7/1/2001
Ms. Jima Severson, Havre Qualifications (if required):	classroom teacher active in	Governor the retirement sys	7/1/2001 tem

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Telecommunications Access Serv Services)	rices for Persons with Disabi	lities (Public Hea	lth and Human
Mr. Ben Havdahl, Helena Qualifications (if required):	hard of hearing	Governor	7/1/2001
Mr. Ron Bibler, Great Falls Qualifications (if required):	disabled	Governor	7/1/2001
Ms. Chris Huth, Helena Qualifications (if required):	non-disabled businessperson	Governor	7/1/2001
Tourism Advisory Council (Com Ms. Maureen Averill, Bigfork	merce)	Governor	7/1/2001
Qualifications (if required):	representing Glacier Countr		7/1/2001
Ms. Lisa Perry, Shepherd Qualifications (if required):	representing Custer Country	Governor	7/1/2001
Ms. Betsy Baumgart, Helena Qualifications (if required):	representing Gold West Coun	Governor try	7/1/2001
Ms. Debbie Donovan, Larslan Qualifications (if required):	representing Missouri River	Governor Country	7/1/2001
Ms. Kathy Brown, Helena Qualifications (if required):	representing Custer Country	Governor	7/1/2001
Western Interstate Commission Mr. Richard A. Crofts, Helena	on Higher Education (Educat	ion) Governor	6/19/2001
Qualifications (if required):	educator engaged in the fie		

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Youth Justice Advisory Council Mr. Craig Anderson, Glendive Qualifications (if required):	(Justice) representative of probation	Governor services	6/14/2001
Ms. Gail Gray, Helena Qualifications (if required):	representative of educations	Governor al services	6/14/2001
Attorney Mike McGrath, Helena Qualifications (if required):	county attorney	Governor	6/14/2001
Mr. Rick Day, Helena Qualifications (if required):	Director of the Department	Governor of Corrections	6/14/2001
Ms. Sally K. Stansberry, Misso Qualifications (if required): delinquency prevention and income	representative of a nonprof.	Governor it organization dea	6/14/2001 ling with
Judge Gary Acevedo, Pablo Qualifications (if required):	representative of Native Am	Governor ericans and the jud	6/14/2001 iciary
Ms. Jani McCall, Billings Qualifications (if required):	representative of mental hea	Governor alth services	6/14/2001
Ms. Peggy Beltrone, Great Fall Qualifications (if required):	s representative of local gove	Governor ernment	6/14/2001
Ms. Donna Maddux, Kalispell Qualifications (if required):	representative of the educa	Governor tion community	6/14/2001
Mr. Chuck Hunter, Helena Qualifications (if required): prevention	representative of a public	Governor agency dealing with	6/14/2001 delinquency

Board/current position holder		Appointed by	Term end
Youth Justice Advisory Council Rep. Jeff Mangan, Great Falls Qualifications (if required):	(Justice) cont.	Governor	6/14/2001
Ms. Valerie Rasch, Billings Qualifications (if required): services	representative of a public	Governor agency dealing with	6/14/2001 detention
Mr. Steven Nelson, Bozeman Qualifications (if required): delinquency prevention and tre		Governor it organization dea	6/14/2001 ling with
Mr. Ron Whitmoyer, East Helena Qualifications (if required):	school principal	Governor	6/14/2001
Ms. Misti Robertson, Billings Qualifications (if required):	law enforcement officer	Governor	6/14/2001
Mr. Michael Larson, Billings Qualifications (if required):	youth recreation representa	Governor tive	6/14/2001
Ms. Nicole Tollefson, Bonner Qualifications (if required):	youth representative	Governor	6/14/2001
Mr. Duane Piapot, Box Elder Qualifications (if required):	youth representative	Governor	6/14/2001
Ms. Katie Yother, Miles City Qualifications (if required):	youth representative	Governor	6/14/2001
Mr. Brock Albin, Bozeman Qualifications (if required):	representative of a non-ful	Governor .ltime government po	6/14/2001 sition